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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREH|E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”),
| am pleased to present the annual report of Kwong Luen
Engineering Holdings Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended
31 March 2023 (the “Year”).

LISTING ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE

The ordinary shares of our Company (the “Shares”) were
successfully listed (the “Listing”) on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 11
March 2021 (the “Listing Date”) which marked a significant
milestone for our Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”). 250,000,000 ordinary Shares were issued under
the share offer, raising net proceeds of approximately HK$97.1
million (after deducting expenses from the Listing (the “Listing
Expenses”)).

OVERVIEW

With the capital raised from the Listing, the Group has greater
flexibility to enhance the service capacity which strengthen the
Group's market position in Hong Kong.

For the Year, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
HK$338.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately
38.4% as compared to approximately HK$548.8 million for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (the “FY2021/22"). For the Year, the
Group recorded profit attributed to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$1.0 million as compared to profit recorded for
FY2021/22 of approximately HK$23.5 million. The decrease of the
profit was mainly attributable to the decrease in the Group’s gross
profit.
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PROSPECT

Hong Kong's economy showed a year-on-year contraction in 2022
due to worsened external environment and tightened financial
conditions. The foundation industry has been affected and the
Group observed increase in cost of sales and stagnation in economic
growth causing reduction of private residential development, leading
to increased competition, reduction in tender opportunities and
decrease in gross profit margin of projects awarded.

Looking into the future, the Group will continue leverage its
solid track record in the foundation industry and the favourable
government policies to explore different options in this difficult time.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, let me take this opportunity to extend our
heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, business partners, customers,
and employees for your continuous support and contribution to the
Group. We are committed to delivering value and bringing returns
to all our stakeholders.

Yip Kwong Cheung
Chairman
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERENREEE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. YIP Kwong Cheung ( # & ## ) ("Mr. Yip”), aged 66, is our
Chairman, chief executive officer and executive Director. Mr.
Yip serves as the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”). Mr. Yip is primarily responsible for overseeing the
daily operation, managing the project management team and
formulating the overall business development strategies of our
Group.

Mr. Yip is a founder of our Group. Mr. Yip attended junior secondary
education in Hong Kong. He has accumulated about 32 years of
experience in the foundation industry and construction project
management. In August 1990, he commenced his own business
through a sole proprietorship under the name of Kwong Luen Co.
established by himself which mainly engaged in construction works
in Hong Kong. He has been a director of Kwong Luen Engineering
Limited (“Kwong Luen Engineering”) since June 1995. He is also
a director of both Kwong Luen Prosperity Limited (“Kwong Luen
Prosperity”) and Kwong Luen Success Limited (“Kwong Luen
Success”). Mr. Yip is the spouse of Ms. Kwan Chui Ling.

Mr. Yip has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing on 11 March 2021
and will continue thereafter until terminated in accordance with
the terms of the agreement. The amount of emoluments paid
for the Year to Mr. Yip is set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements for the Year of the Company’s annual report.
Such remuneration/emoluments will be reviewed annually by the
Board and the Remuneration Committee and he is also entitled to
a discretionary bonus with reference to his performance and the
operating results of the Group.

Mr. Yip has not held any directorship in the last three years in
public companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas. As at 31 March 2023, he was
interested in 561,130,000 Shares held through Kwong Luen
Prosperity (representing 56.11% of the aggregate number of Shares
in issue). Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yip was not interested in any
Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO") as at 31 March 2023. Save as disclosed above,
Mr. Yip does not have any relationship with any other Directors,
senior management or substantial shareholder or controlling
shareholder of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. KWAN Chui Ling (8 2 %) (“Ms. Kwan"), aged 65, is our
executive Director. Ms. Kwan is primarily responsible for overseeing
the human resources and administration affairs of our Group. Ms.
Kwan attended secondary education in Hong Kong. Ms. Kwan
has accumulated about 22 years of experience in the foundation
industry. She has been a director of Kwong Luen Engineering since
June 2000. She is also a director of both Kwong Luen Prosperity and
Kwong Luen Success. Ms. Kwan is the spouse of Mr. Yip.

Ms. Kwan has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing on 11 March 2021
and will continue thereafter until terminated in accordance with
the terms of the agreement. The amount of emoluments paid for
the Year to Ms. Kwan is set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements for the Year of the Company’s annual report.
Such remuneration/emoluments will be reviewed annually by the
Board and the Remuneration Committee and she is also entitled to
a discretionary bonus with reference to her performance and the
operating results of the Group.

Ms. Kwan has not held any directorship in the last three years in
public companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas. As at 31 March 2023, she
was interested in 561,130,000 Shares held through Kwong Luen
Prosperity (representing 56.11% of the aggregate number of Shares
in issue). Save as disclosed above, Ms. Kwan was not interested
in any Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as at 31
March 2023. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Kwan does not have
any relationship with any other Directors, senior management or
substantial shareholder or controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. LIN Rida (#f B #E) ("Mr. Lin"), aged 50, was appointed as our
executive Director on 4 November 2022. Mr. Lin serves as a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
He is responsible for providing strategic advice on our corporate
governance and compliance matters and formulation of business
strategies of the Group.

Mr. Lin has years of experience in the fields of tax and business
administration in the PRC. He obtained a bachelor of law from the
Central Party School of the Chinese Communist Party* (fF f£fF L E
) in December 2006. From July 2021 to August 2022, Mr. Lin was
the general manager of Taizhou Dongsong Lvye Company Limited*
(M TTERARIRZE AR A R]). From June 1997 to July 2021, Mr. Lin
joined the Taizhou Jiaojiang Haimen Street Tax Collection
Department* (& N 7 #UT [& )8 P9 A7 8 B 75 B U 48) with his last
position as supervisor.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lin has not held any directorship in
any other listed companies the securities of which are listed on
any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three
years. Mr. Lin also does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholder of the
Company.

* for identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEE

Mr. BU Lei ( b#) (“Mr. Bu”), aged 33, was appointed as our executive
Director on 5 July 2023. Mr. Bu is responsible for providing strategic
advice on our corporate governance and compliance matters and
formulation of business strategies of the Group.

Mr. Bu has years of experience in information technology and
business administration in the PRC. He obtained a diploma of
sales and marketing from Southwest University in July 2015. From
February 2018 to May 2023, Mr. Bu was the partner of Hangzhou
Heyi Network Technology Company Limited* (Ll {al A 4B4& Rl A
RAR]).

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Bu has not held any directorship in
any other listed companies the securities of which are listed on
any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three
years. Mr. Bu also does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. CHENG Shing Yan ( &8 & fiX ) (“"Ms. Cheng"), aged 48, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 19
February 2021. Ms. Cheng serves as the chairlady of the audit
committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
She is responsible for overseeing our management independently
and providing independent advice to the Board.

Ms. Cheng has accumulated about 24 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. She held different
positions at various auditing or CPA firms from 2004 to 2016. Ms.
Cheng joined the group of Sanroc International Holdings Limited
(now known as Zhaobangji Properties Holdings Limited) (“Sanroc”),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1660), as the chief financial officer from April 2016 to April
2018 and as the chief financial officer of certain subsidiaries of
Sanroc since April 2018.

From August 2016 to April 2018 and from April 2017 to April
2018, she was the company secretary and an executive director
of Sanroc, respectively. From June 2017 to October 2019, she
was an independent non-executive director of China Shenghai
Food Holdings Company Limited (now known as China Shenghai
Group Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1676). Since October 2017, she has been
an independent non-executive director of Putian Communication
Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1720). Since April 2023, she has been an
independent non-executive director of Easy Smart Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2442).

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Cheng obtained a master’'s degree of arts in international
accounting from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2003. She was admitted as a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in July 2003, a fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in December
2005, an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators (now known as The Chartered Governance Institute)
in June 2017 and an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries (now known as The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute) in June 2017.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. Cheng has not held any directorship
in the last three years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. She is
not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does she have any
interests in the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. WONG Yiu Kit Ernest (Z¥&£) (“Mr. Wong"), aged 55, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 19 February
2021. Mr. Wong serves as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is responsible for overseeing our management
independently and providing independent advice to the Board.

Mr. Wong has accumulated over 21 years of extensive experience
in venture capital, corporate finance and management. He is
currently the president and the group chief financial officer of KVB
Holdings Limited. He was an executive director of Adamas Finance
Asia Limited (formerly known as China Private Equity Investment
Holdings Limited, now known as Jade Road Investment Limited)
("Adamas Finance”), a company listed on the London Stock
Exchange (stock code: JADE) and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1CP1), from May 2008 to February 2014 and a non-executive
director of Adamas Finance from February 2014 to June 2019.
From October 2014 to August 2019, he worked for KVB Kunlun
Financial Group Limited (now known as CLSA Premium Limited)
("Kunlun Financial”), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 6877), as the chief financial officer
and the company secretary. During the period from May 2018 to
August 2019, he was concurrently an executive director of Kunlun
Financial. Before that, he worked at Hong Kong Applied Science
and Technology Research Institute Company Limited as the chief
financial officer, and previously he was the vice president of Vertex
Management (HK), an international venture capital firm.

2022/23 FERE o

EENREREERE

BZtRN-_ZET=F+—-ARGEENTARER
BREBERELISRMU - RN _TT=Ft AEE
MAEAEMASEMEE  R-_FTTRF
ToARREBEEFFARSHAMASERSE
R-ZE—tFNARREESFRNE R TBAE
ANE(RHAERSTARAEAR)EE RN
Tt FANARRBRRANERG(RBELAE

N =1 S \& S
BREAEAZ)®E o

B EXFEEES MR ARBE S S A EAE
BB ETEIMEABSEDIS L2 ARA AR
FAEAEERG - REAFES  AARBHRE
BIE - £ B R - TR T
B E AR 1558 % B R S W XV RB AR 7B T
0 2 % -

BERARE(TERE]) 555 R_T——
“ATNRBZERBIIFNITES - JmtAEh
IFMEZESXR  URERZEENMERZE
BKE - WAEERVEBRMANEELRNESRS
REBIER -

EEERBIRERE  CEREREEIEZRE
B21F 485 o 1 B BI2KVB Holdings Limited 9
BEREEERVEE RZZEENFRAZE
—E-MNEH - B HBAdamas Finance Asia
Limited ( A 8 /& China Private Equity Investment
Holdings Limited - 3% 7 7 Jade Road Investment
Limited) ([ Adamas Finance |) BIi1TE %E - &%
NEERABSFRZ S (RGOSR - JADE) &%
BREESFR S (RHRIE : 1CP1) £ -
YHR—_ZE—MEF-_AZ_FT—hLhFNAEMT
Adamas FinanceRI3EHITE S - RZT—UF+
AEZZT-NFNA  FEREmEERsRSE
BB R AR (RFECLSA Premium Limited) ([ E&
Sm] —RHBXAERLETAR  RORIE
6877) EEBRMBERAAWE - R _F
—\FRAZZZ-NF/)\ AR - BRERE
EHTRONITES - LAl - KEERETEEER
REMRRER AR EETEE - LA A Vertex
Management (HK)( —FEIEIFR RBRIEE A 7)) B4
o

RBMIEEZERERLA



10

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEE

From July 2014 to July 2020, he was an independent non-executive
director of HongDa Financial Holding Limited (now known as China
Wood International Holding Co., Limited), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1822). From October
2011 to June 2022, he was an independent non-executive director
of RENHENG Enterprise Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3628).

He is currently an independent non-executive director of each
of Progressive Path Group Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1581),
Aidigong Maternal & Child Health Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 286), Goldstone
Investment Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 901) and Samson Paper Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 731).

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree of business administration
from the University of Hong Kong, a master’s degree of science
in investment management from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology, a master’s degree of science in electronic
engineering from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
master’s degree of science in major programme management from
the University of Oxford in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Wong was admitted as a chartered financial analyst of The
Institute of Chartered Financial Analysts, a fellow of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wong has not held any directorship
in the last three years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. He is
not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does he have any
interests in the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TANG Sher Kin (Bf4£E2) (“Mr. Tang”), aged 53, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 19 February 2021.
Mr. Tang serves as a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. He is
responsible for overseeing our management independently and
providing independent advice to the Board.

Mr. Tang has accumulated about 28 years of experience in
engineering industry and project management. From May 1994 to
June 1997, he worked as a senior sales engineer at Temperzone
Limited. From June 1997 to December 2018, he worked as a senior
manager at The Jardine Engineering Corporation, Limited. Since
January 2019, he has been an executive director and the general
manager of Luen Fat Air Condition (Holding) Trading & Engineering
Co. Ltd.

Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor’s degree of engineering in mechanical
engineering from the Oxford Polytechnic (now known as the Oxford
Brookes University) in the United Kingdom in July 1992 and a
master’s degree of arts in global business management from the
City University of Hong Kong in November 2006.

Mr. Tang was admitted as a chartered engineer of the Engineering
Council in December 2004, a fellow of the Asian Institute of
Intelligent Buildings in July 2005, a BEAM professional of the Hong
Kong Green Building Council in 2010, a chartered environmentalist
of the Society of Operations Engineers in August 2011, a registered
energy assessor of the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
of the Government in August 2012, a certified member of The
Environmental Management Association of Hong Kong in January
2017 and a professional member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Qualified Environmental Professionals Limited in July 2017. Mr. Tang
is currently a fellow of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers in five
disciplines including (i) building services; (ii) control, automation and
instrumentation; (iii) environmental; (iv) energy; and (v) mechanical.
Mr. Tang has been a member of the Innovation and Technology
Fund Research Projects Assessment Panel for two years with effect
from 1 January 2021.

Mr. Tang has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of ALCO HOLDINGS LIMITED, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0328), since June 2022.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tang has not held any directorship in
the last three years in public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not
connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does he have any
interests in the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEE

Mr. KWOK Yiu Hung ( 28 #8 3t ) (“Mr. Kwok"), aged 58, joined
our Group in August 1997 as an excavator operator of Kwong
Luen Engineering. He was promoted as a site agent of Kwong
Luen Engineering in March 2000 and was further promoted as
a site manager of Kwong Luen Engineering in September 2015.
He has accumulated about 39 years of practical experience in the
foundation industry. Mr. Kwok is primarily responsible for our site
coordination, site supervision and project management.

Mr. Kwok completed four courses for qualifying site supervisors
as technically competent persons organised by the Construction
Industry Training Authority in Hong Kong from 2002 to 2005.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Kwok has not held any directorship
in the last three years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. He is
not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does he have any
interests in the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. WONG Ho Cheung (E3) (“Mr. Wong Ho Cheung”), aged
35, joined our Group in December 2019 as a financial controller of
Kwong Luen Engineering. He is primarily responsible for overseeing
our financial reporting, financial planning, treasury, financial control
and company secretarial matters.

Mr. Wong Ho Cheung has accumulated about 11 years of
experience in auditing and financial matters. Prior to joining our
Group, from October 2011 to September 2012, Mr. Wong Ho
Cheung served as an audit trainee at Pentagon CPA Limited. From
October 2012 to January 2016, Mr. Wong Ho Cheung held various
positions at Mazars CPA Limited, where he last served as a senior
(grade Il). From February 2016 to January 2018, Mr. Wong Ho
Cheung served as a senior at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. From
June 2018 to October 2019, Mr. Wong Ho Cheung served as an
accounting manager at Kit Kee Engineering Limited, a subsidiary of
Dragon Rise Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 6829), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong Ho Cheung obtained a bachelor’s degree of business
administration (accounting) from the Hong Kong Baptist University
in November 2011. He was admitted as a certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
October 2018.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wong Ho Cheung has not held
any directorship in the last three years in public companies the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas. He is not connected with any Directors, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE WA

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The construction industry and foundation industry in Hong Kong
have been negatively affected by the COVID-19 continuously. Hong
Kong has experienced the fifth wave of outbreak of COVID-19 in the
first half of 2022. The scale and impact of the fifth wave of outbreak
has been much more severe than the previous waves. According to
the Census and Statistic Department, the gross value of construction
works performed by main contractors for 2022 increased by 5.7%,
as compared to 2021. The Directors of the Group believe that the
demand for Hong Kong'’s foundation industry will improve in the
foreseeable future.

The Hong Kong economy showed a year-on-year contraction
in 2022. According to the Government of Hong Kong (the
“Government”), the worsened external environment and tightened
financial conditions have hampered Hong Kong’s economy. The real
GDP of Hong Kong has fell by 3.5% for 2022, as compared to a
year earlier.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has affected both Hong Kong and
the PRC. The fifth wave of outbreak of COVID-19 attributable to
SARS-CoV-2 Omicron variant has affected Hong Kong in the first
half of 2022, resulting in (i) delays in certification process by the
Government and affecting cash flow of construction contractors;
(i) labour shortage and slowdown of the work progress of projects;
and (iii) reduction in supply of raw materials and short term surge in
price of raw materials. COVID-19 has also continuously affected the
PRC starting from the second quarter of 2022. The PRC Government
has imposed active coronavirus controls in various cities, such
as regularly testing, shutdown of non-essential businesses and
temporary lockdowns, which has inevitably cause disruption in
the supply chain in Hong Kong. Contractors in Hong Kong have
experienced severe disruption in supply of raw materials and increase
in price of raw materials.

Despite the aforementioned difficulties, the Group expects that
there are upsides to the industry. In particular (i) the Government
targets to increase the overall supply of transitional housing in the
coming few years as set out in the Chief Executive’s Policy Address;
(ii) the launch of the Northern Metropolis Development Strategy
by the Government in 2021; (iii) the “Land Sharing Pilot Scheme”
proposed which seeks to unleash the development of privately
owned agricultural lots for housing purposes; and (iv) the labour
import plan proposed by the Government in June 2023 may help
ease labour crunch. There are still ample room of growth for the
construction industry when the economy of Hong Kong improves.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BERER MR

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group is a foundation works contractor in Hong Kong.
The Group has commenced its business in 1995 and has since
undertaken foundation works in the role of subcontractor through
Kwong Luen Engineering, the Group's principal operating subsidiary.
The Group’s foundation works services are widely required in
residential and non-residential developments such as commercial
and infrastructure developments. In particular, the Group has
established a solid track record in undertaking foundation works
mainly in residential developments initiated by private property
developers in Hong Kong.

During the Year, the construction industry and foundation industry
in Hong Kong was hampered by the COVID-19 outbreak. The Group
has recorded decrease in revenue and gross profit margin, mainly
attributable to (i) the increase in cost of sales as a result of increase
in price of raw materials; and (ii) stagnation in economic growth of
Hong Kong, as demonstrated by the contraction in gross domestic
product of Hong Kong for each of the four quarters of 2022 and the
reduction of private residential development from 21,300 units in
2021 to 11,000 in 2022, leading to increased competition, reduction
in tender opportunities and decrease in gross profit margin of
projects awarded.

Looking into the future, COVID-19’s effect on Hong Kong is
expected to diminish but Hong Kong will continue to be affected
by the macro-economic situation. The Group will continue leverage
its solid track record in the foundation industry and the favourable
government policies to explore different options in this difficult time.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased to approximately HK$338.3 million
for the Year by approximately HK$210.5 million or 38.4%, from
approximately HK$548.8 million for the FY2021/22. This was
principally due to the decrease in revenue contributed by two
sizable projects awarded during the year ended 31 March 2021. The
estimated contract sum of these two projects were approximately
HK$328.5 million and HK$121.3 million, respectively. One of these
projects commenced in August 2020 whereas another commenced
in March 2021. These projects were in the midst of their major
construction phase during the FY2021/22 whereas the major
construction phase has passed for both projects during the Year. The
revenue contribution from the project commenced in August 2020
and the project commenced in March 2021 were approximately
HK$59.9 million (FY2021/22: approximately HK$215.2 million)
and HK$9.3 million (FY2021/22: approximately HK$109.9 million)
respectively, for the Year.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's cost of sales decreased from approximately HK$502.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately
HK$326.4 million for the Year, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$176.3 million or 35.1%, mainly attributable to
the decrease in revenue.

The Group’s overall gross profit decreased from approximately
HK$46.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately
HK$11.9 million for the Year, representing a decrease of
approximately 74.2%. Such decrease in our Group’s overall gross
profit was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in cost of sales as a
result of increase in price of the raw materials, mainly attributable
to the outbreak of COVID-19 SARS-CoV-2 Omicron variant in
Hong Kong in early 2022 and mainland China in the second and
third quarter of 2022; and (ii) stagnation in economic growth of
Hong Kong, as demonstrated by the contraction in gross domestic
product of Hong Kong for each of the four quarters of 2022 and the
reduction of private residential development from 21,300 units in
2021 to 11,000 in 2022, leading to increased competition, reduction
in tender opportunities and decrease in gross profit margin of
projects awarded. As a result, the Group’s overall gross profit margin
decreased from 8.4% for the year ended 31 March 2022 to 3.5%
for the Year.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains of the Group increased by approximately
HK$4.8 million from approximately HK$1.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2022 to approximately HK$6.3 million for the Year.
The increase was mainly due to government grants of approximately
HK$5.9 million received from the Employment Support Scheme of
the Government for the purpose to retain employment and combat
the COVID-19 for the Year.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group decreased from
approximately HK$11.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2022
to approximately HK$11.1 million for the Year, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$0.3 million or approximately 2.6%.
The decrease during the Year was mainly due to the decrease of
approximately HK$0.3 million in the professional and consultancy
fee, from approximately HK$1.8 million for the FY2021/22 to
approximately HK$1.5 million for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BERER MR

Expected credit losses (“ECL"”) on contract assets

The ECL on contract assets of the Group increased from
approximately HK$7.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2022
to approximately HK$7.4 million for the Year, representing an
increase of approximately HK$0.4 million or approximately 5.7%.
The increase during the Year was mainly due to the individual
assessment of 2 contract assets arising from construction contracts
as at 31 March 2023 (with an aggregate total gross carrying amount
of approximately HK$5.8 million before measurement of the ECL),
which were assigned with a loss rate of 100%. Such impairment of
contract assets were recorded mainly because (i) the contract assets
were aged over one year; (ii) there was increase in price of raw
material during the outbreak of COVID-19 which led to the increase
in cost incurred for the performance of contract but the Group
was unable to receive the full amount of the contract assets from
the relevant customers; and (iii) the Directors had negotiated with
the relevant customers and were given the understanding that the
contract assets would not be recoverable.

The Directors of the Group assessed the recoverability of contract
assets as at 31 March 2023 and believed that the ECL allowances
were adequate because:

e For contract assets arisen from projects which were close to or
at the final stage, it generally takes longer period of time for
customers in the foundation works industry to proceed with
the final review and approval for the relevant work done of the
entire project before issuing the relevant completion certificate.
On such occasion, the recovery of contract assets generally
takes a longer period of time but are generally recoverable;

e A substantial portion of the contract assets were from
customers which the Group has established long business
relationship with. The Directors regularly meet and discuss
with the relevant customers to monitor the recoverability of
the contract assets and are not aware of any difficulties in the
recoverability of the contract assets; and

e The retention receivables are generally released (i) upon
completion of works to the satisfaction of the main contractor
or project owner; or (ii) pursuant to the terms of the main
contracts on back-to-back basis. In general, the retention
receivables are fully recoverable in accordance to the contract
once the final account is confirmed by the customer. As the
contract works of most projects which recorded retention
receivables as at 31 March 2023 are still ongoing (the duration
of the projects may be up to three years), a portion of the
retention receivables have yet to be recovered as at the date of
the enquiry. The Directors are not aware of any circumstances
that would raise question on the recoverability of the retention
receivables.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group increased from approximately
HK$541,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022 to approximately
HK$667,000 for the Year, representing an increase of approximately
HK$126,000 or 23.3%. The increase in our finance costs was
primarily attributable to the increase in bank import loan interest
rate range from approximately 2.9%-3.2% during the FY2021/22
to approximately 3.5%-7.8% during the Year.

Income tax credit/(expense)

The income tax expenses of the Group decreased from tax expense
of approximately HK$4.7 million for the year ended 31 March
2022 to tax credit of approximately HK$1.2 million for the Year,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$5.9 million or 124.3%.
The decrease was due to the decrease in the Group’s gross profit
as discussed above, over provision of current tax in respect of prior
years and movement of deferred tax during the Year.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

The profit and total comprehensive income for the year of the
Group decreased from approximately HK$23.5 million for the year
ended 31 March 2022 to approximately HK$1.0 million for the
Year, representing a decrease of approximately HK$22.5 million or
95.7%. The decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease in
the Group's gross profit as discussed above.
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Key financial ratio FEMBHE=R
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
N-EBE-=H WZE - —F
=A=+-—H =A=+—H”
Current ratio MENEE 6.6 timesfZ 4.7 timesf
Gearing ratio BEAGBHE 1.3% 9.6%
Return on total assets REERRE 0.3% 7.6%
Return on equity T 7 [0 2 0.4% 9.5%
Net profit margin B 0.3% 4.3%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DT

Current Ratio

Current ratio is calculated as current assets divided by current
liabilities as at the respective reporting dates.

The current ratio of the Group increased to approximately 6.6 times
as at 31 March 2023 from approximately 4.7 times as at 31 March
2022. The increase was mainly due to the increase in contract assets.

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings (including secured
bank loans and lease liabilities) divided by the total equity as at the
respective reporting dates.

The gearing ratio of the Group decreased to approximately 1.3% as
at 31 March 2023 from approximately 9.6% as at 31 March 2022.
The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in secured bank loans.

Return on total assets

Return on total assets is calculated as profit and total comprehensive
income for the year divided by the ending total assets as at the
respective reporting dates.

Our return on total assets decreased to approximately 0.3% for the
Year from approximately 7.6% for the year ended 31 March 2022.
The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the Group’s gross
profit as discussed above.

Return on equity

Return on equity is calculated as profit and total comprehensive
income for the year divided by the ending total equity as at the
respective reporting dates.

Our return on equity decreased to approximately 0.4% for the Year
from approximately 9.5% for the year ended 31 March 2022. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the Group’s gross profit
as discussed above.

Net profit margin

Our net profit margin decreased to approximately 0.3% for the Year
from approximately 4.3% for the year ended 31 March 2022. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the Group’s gross profit
as discussed above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTY

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks
and uncertainties. The following are the key risks and uncertainties
faced by the Group:

Industry risks

We have focused on providing foundation works services in the
role of subcontractor during the Year. The future development of
the foundation industry and the availability of foundation projects
in Hong Kong depend largely on the continued development of
the property market in Hong Kong. The nature, extent and timing
of available foundation projects will be determined by an interplay
of a variety of factors, including the Government’s policies on the
property market in Hong Kong, its land supply and public housing
policy, the investment of property developers and the general
conditions and prospects of Hong Kong's economy. These factors
may affect the availability of foundation projects in Hong Kong. If
there is any slowdown (in terms of transaction volume and price) of
the property market in Hong Kong, there is no assurance that the
availability of foundation projects in Hong Kong would not decrease
significantly and our Group’s business and financial position and
prospect may be adversely and materially affected.

Compliance risks

Many aspects of our business operation are governed by various
laws and regulations and Government policies. There is no assurance
that we will be able to respond to any such changes in a timely
manner. Such changes may also increase our costs and burden in
complying with them, which may materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operation. If there are any
changes to and/or imposition of the requirements for qualification
in the foundation industry in relation to environmental protection
and labour safety, and we fail to meet the new requirements in a
timely manner or at all, our business operation will be materially and
adversely affected.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BERER MR

Uncertainties in construction progress

Foundation works expose us to the risk of unexpected geological
or sub-soil conditions. Prior to commencement of our foundation
works, our customers would normally provide us with ground
investigation reports. However, information contained in these
reports may not be sufficient to reveal the actual geology
beneath the construction site due to limitation in the scope of the
underground investigation works that can be carried out at the
site and/or other technical limitations. There may be discrepancies
between the actual geological conditions and the findings set out
in these investigation reports, and the investigation may not be
able to reveal the existence of rocks or to identify any antiquities,
monuments or structures beneath the site. All these may eventually
present potential issues and uncertainties in the carrying out of our
foundation works, such as the possible increase in the complexity
of the project resulting from additional work procedures, workers,
equipment and time required to deal with any unexpected existence
of rocks, antiquities or monuments, which may also lead to
additional costs to be incurred. Pricing of our services is determined
on a case-by-case basis having regard to various factors, which
include our assessment of the complexity of the project having
regard to all relevant information available to us, including the
information contained in the ground investigation reports provided
by our customers. In case of any significant unexpected difficult
geological or sub-soil conditions, our Group may incur additional
costs in dealing with such unforeseen conditions, which may lead
to cost overruns and may thus materially and adversely affect our
business operation and financial position.

Failure to guarantee new business

A significant portion of our revenue was derived from a limited
number of customers during the Year. We were engaged by our
customers on a project-by-project basis during the Year. There is
no assurance that we will continue to obtain contracts from our
major customers in the future and there is no assurance that we
will be able to secure projects with gross profit margin comparable
to those projects awarded to us by our current customers. If there
is a significant decrease in the number of projects awarded by our
major customers, and we are unable to secure suitable projects of
a comparable size, quantity or gross profit margin as replacements
from other customers, our financial condition and operating results
would be materially and adversely affected.

Nevertheless, the Group considers that a public listing status enable
us to enjoy several competitive advantages, such as transparent
financial disclosures, enhanced internal control and corporate
governance practices. Our Directors believe the customers would
give weight to these competitive edges when they select and engage
subcontractors for foundation services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and the management are
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has material
impact on the business and operation of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND SUB-CONTRACTORS
Employees

As at 31 March 2023, including three executive Directors but
excluding three independent non-executive Directors, the Group had
a total of 136 employees (31 March 2022: 123).

We recognise employees as valuable assets and our success is
underpinned by our people. In line with our human resource policies,
we are committed to providing attractive remuneration packages,
and a fair and harmonious working environment to safeguard the
legitimate rights and interests of our employees. The Group regularly
reviews our human resource policies which outline the Group's
compensation, working hours, rest periods and other benefits
and welfare, to ensure compliance with laws and regulations. We
always place emphasis on attracting qualified applicants by offering
competitive remuneration packages. These packages are reviewed
based on employees’ performance and reference to prevailing
market conditions, and are adjusted in a timely manner to keep
them in line with market benchmarking.

In addition, the Company has conditionally adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 19 February 2021 so as
to motivate, attract and retain the right employees.

Customers

The Group are aware of the risk of customer concentration, and
sought to reduce the reliance on major customer by making
consistent effort in expanding and diversifying our customer base.
We also intend to strengthen our relationships with main contractors
which are group member of major private property developers.

Besides that, the Group believes a strong and good relationship
with customers would increase its recognition and visibility in the
foundation industry. As such, the Group values the views and
opinions of all customers through various means and channels,
including regular review and analysis on customer feedback.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DT

Suppliers and sub-contractors

The Group has developed stable and strong working relationships
with suppliers and sub-contractors to meet the Group’s customers’
needs in an effective and efficient manner. The Group works closely
with the suppliers and sub-contractors to make sure the tendering,
procurement and sub-contracting are conducted in an open, fair and
just manner. The Group's requirements and standards are also well-
communicated to them before the commencement of the project.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL POSITION AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this report.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company's issued capital was HK$10.0
million and the number of its issued ordinary Shares was
1,000,000,000 Shares of HK$0.01 each.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had total cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$25.4 million (31 March 2022: approximately
HK$42.6 million).

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a conservative approach towards its
treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position
throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit
risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of
the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the
Board closely monitors the Group's liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2023, a life insurance policy with a carrying amount
of approximately HK$4,625,000 (FY2021/22: approximately
HK$4,497,000) was pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to
the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As the Group only operates in Hong Kong and all of the revenue
and transactions arising from its operations were settled in Hong
Kong dollars, the Directors are of the view that the Group’s foreign
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exchange rate risks are insignificant. Thus, the Group has not THE K AR ARE F R E R @R
entered into any derivative contracts to hedge against the foreign

exchange rate risk for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had the following capital
commitments:
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As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a contingent liability in
relation to a fatal accident (the “Accident”) occurred at a worksite,
whereby a subcontractor’s worker allegedly sustained fatal injury
during the course of work. In October 2021, five summonses (the
“Summons”) were issued against Kwong Luen Engineering in
relation to the Accident on various offences under the Factories
and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance. Based on the status of the
legal proceedings for the Summons at the time and independent
legal advice obtained, the management of the Group considered
it was premature to conclude on whether the Group was probable
to be liable for offences alleged in the Summons at the time, and
therefore a contingent liability existed.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, prosecutions were
initiated by the Labour Department. On 22 February 2023, Kwong
Luen Engineering was fined HK$120,000 at the Kowloon City
Magistrates’ Courts for violation of the Factories and Industrial
Undertakings Ordinance, the Factories and Industrial undertakings
(Lifting Appliances and Lifting Gear) Regulations and the Factories
and Industrial Undertakings (Safety Management) Regulation and
the case was closed.

The above fine of HK$120,000 was included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no significant
investments held, material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies by the Group during the Year. Save for the
business plan as disclosed in the Prospectus, there was no plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 March 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWR DT

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 26
February 2021 (the “Prospectus”) and this annual report, the
Group did not have any other plans for material investments or
capital assets during the Year.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Up to 31 March 2023, we utilised the net proceeds raised from
the Listing in accordance with the designated uses set out in
the section headed “Future plans and use of proceeds” to the
Prospectus. Such uses include: (i) financing the up-front costs of
projects; (ii) purchasing additional machinery; (iii) further expanding
and strengthening manpower by recruiting additional staff; and (iv)
purchasing a building information modelling software together with
certain ancillary supporting hardware device. Details of the use of
proceeds are listed as below:

proceeds from proceeds from
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Actual
use of

Expected
timeline of
Unutilised full utilisation

use of

Planned  Listing Date Listing Date proceeds of the
useof to31March  to31March asat31March remaining
proceeds 2023 2023 2023 proceeds
IHBEH IHBEH
ECRC=HF ECRCCE ORISR FEEA
ZA=t—-B Z=A=t-H =A=1+-H ®#THE
FERE FriGFE FriERE NABA HENES
HTEAR HE ithed ERAR FiBRE BER
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEAR BEAER BEAR BEAET
Financing the up-front costs of (78 B &9ATERR AR 39.9 39.9 39.9 - N/ATEA
projects
Purchasing additional machinery & E 285 Mk, 36.5 36.5 36.5 - N/ARER
Further expanding and BBAEFLET 15.5 15.5 15.5 - N/ATER
strengthening manpower by AR R
recruiting additional staff BMEAN
Purchasing a building information 8 E2F = 8B A&+ 5.2 5.2 5.2 - N/ARER
modelling software together URETHRESF
with certain ancillary supporting ~ E{FR&
hardware device
Total ‘st 97.1 97.1 97.1 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The net proceeds from the Listing, after deducting related expenses,
were approximately HK$97.1 million. After the Listing, a part of
these proceeds has been applied in accordance with the future plans
and use of proceeds as set out in the Prospectus. As at 31 March
2023 and the date of this annual report, the proceeds were fully
utilised according to the use of proceeds described in the Prospectus.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2023, we employed a total of 136 employees
(including three executive Directors but excluding three independent
non-executive Directors), as compared to a total of 123 employees
as at 31 March 2022. The remuneration packages that the Group
offers to employees includes salaries, allowances, discretionary
bonuses, and/or other benefits in kind. In general, the Group
determines employees’ salaries based on their qualifications,
position and seniority. The Group also adopted a Share Option
Scheme whereby qualified participants may be granted options to
acquire shares in the Company. The total staff cost, excluding three
independent non-executive Directors, incurred by the Group for the
Year was approximately HK$60.3 million compared to approximately
HK$55.0 million for FY2021/22.

The remuneration of the Directors is decided by the Board upon
the recommendation from the remuneration committee of the
Company having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to recommend the declaration of final
dividend for the Year (year ended 31 March 2022: Nil).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL
RISK MANAGEMENT

Our Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure from
time to time. As a part of this review, the management considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR

There have been no other material events occurring after 31 March
2023 and up to the date of this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - HERERHRS

INTRODUCTION
Kwong Luen Engineering Holdings Limited (“KLEH", “the Group”,

" "o

we"”, “us”, or “our”), being a foundation works contractor in
Hong Kong commenced its business since 1995 and has undertaken
foundation works in the role of subcontractor through Kwong
Luen Engineering Limited, its principal operating subsidiary. The
foundation works undertaken by the Group mainly comprised
excavation and lateral support (“ELS"”) and other associated works
including pile cap construction, underground drainage works and
site formation works. The foundation works services are widely
required in residential and non-residential developments such as
commercial and infrastructure developments. In particular, the
Group has established a solid track record in undertaking foundation
works mainly in residential developments initiated by private
property developers in Hong Kong. Nevertheless, the Group remains
open to undertaking projects from different sectors and types of
development.

The Group incorporates environmental, social and governance
("ESG") approaches into its daily management to achieve the
optimum balance on its economic performance, environmental
protection, social responsibility, and stakeholder satisfaction.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is fully committed to
formulating and implementing ESG strategies. Its ESG performance is
supervised by the Board members. Relevant risks and opportunities
have been embedded into the Group's strategic goals, which are also
closely aligned with the overall mission and vision on sustainability.
While developing the Group's goals, we firmly adhered to principles
of good corporate governance and had carefully considered our
activities” influences on the environment and the Hong Kong society.
Corporate social responsibilities were also integrated into the
Group's business strategy and management approach.

The Group is delighted to present the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report ("ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 March
2023 ("Reporting Period”) in the following to illustrate and
highlight our efforts and performance in achieving sustainable
development in both the environment and social aspects.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("ESG Reporting Guide"”), with the aim to inform relevant parties
and stakeholders of our policies, measures and performance
regarding environmental, social and governance issues. To ensure a
comprehensive ESG reporting, we would continuously take note of
different ESG issues and assess their relevance to our ESG reporting.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES AND BOUNDARY

This ESG Report mainly covers the major operation of the Group
in Hong Kong which is provision of foundation works service.
Information in this ESG Report was sourced from the official
documents, statistical data and operational information of the
Group. We adhered to the reporting principles of the ESG Guide,
namely “Materiality”, “Quantitative” and “Consistency” principles
that are described below.

Materiality: The Group has identified key ESG issues through its
annual materiality assessment Topics that are relevant and important
to the stakeholder and the Group are covered in this ESG Report.

Quantitative: Key performance indicators (KPIs) in this ESG Report
explained its purpose and are applicable for comparisons.

Consistency: Consistent methodologies are adopted over time to
allow meaningful comparisons of ESG data.

BOARD STATEMENT

The Group's internal strategies, policies and procedures are designed
with the objective of creating sustainable values for its stakeholders
and minimising the Group’s unavoidable environmental impacts
generated from operation. The Board has ultimate responsibility for
ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s ESG management.

The governance structure is led by the Board while power and
authority are delegated to the management of the Group. The
management of the Group has embedded ESG issues in the
Group's overall direction and strategies, and is responsible for
establishing an ESG strategy, managing ESG risks, and keeping
updated on regulatory updates with assistance from key members
of the operational department (the “ESG workgroup”). The ESG
workgroup is responsible for identifying business related ESG issues,
determining the Group’s ESG goals and target, monitoring ESG
performance and reporting to the management. All business entities
and departments are covered by the risk governance structure and
risk management process of the Group.

2022/23 FERE o

RIR - HERERHRS

AR - HEREAME IREEEH AR I M
BRARERES LRI = +EMECGR
B odakeEalEEs)((RE  tEREAR
BERSIDREMAK - SEEBEBALESENE
THREMARRE HEMNEAEENER 1
BRRI - RERIRR - HENEARERES
| BZMEKEITRNERE  HeakeEn
B WRHAEERFERE e MEAWEHIA
B -

BB 3 R Bl K 2

AR - HEREAREIZBEASEREE
MEBER - AR ETRERS - NRE -
HEREARSAMEENDREAKREETX
-~ BEETBUR REEE R o BAPIE ST TPt
RE  He@hERAmEESIERRR - NIER
] TEe Rl —2E] -

BN ARECEBRFESEMFGERN L E
RRE  HENEARRE - NRE  HERER
TERREFNERARERBIERNR

ELEO

Bt ARE G REARSAMERERE
MBI - BEARLEAE -

—EM  EA-BORESATE SRR &
SMERBIEARAFAERRMLE -

EEEEY

REERNEBRES - R MEFHRET - DEE
AENEAERFBEZRER  WHEAREE
BEABPEIRITERNTE - EFSAR/ER
AEERRE  HERERAEETZERBAR
REME -

ERRBUNEZTERTE MENRIETASKE
EEE  AEEEEREECKRE  HeMELRE
BMANEE R A MRS - MERRES
BEFIEENE ([RR - HEREATHENMED
MBN T HIETIRIE - e REIARE - BEIR
B HekEaRk - T REINRENR
RE - @ RERTIRMAZAR BHRHEER
MHEARIREE - e hEREE - BRI ARERIR
B e hERBR  BERRE HeMERE
AL [F)E IR EE - SR E R B VAR MR
REREFEEEBEZE NIBEHER LM -

RBMIEEZERERLA

27



28

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR - HERERERS

The Board, the management and the ESG workgroup organise
and hold an ESG management meeting quarterly to review the
implementation of ESG work, the content of policy and strategies
established, and the goals and targets set so as to ensure that
appropriate policy and effective ESG risk management are in place.

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

Communication with stakeholders is extremely crucial to our group,
we insist on continually seeking opportunities to do so. We work
to thoroughly understand the needs and expectations of various
stakeholders through daily communication, the Group's official
website, e-mail, and other channels and respond to them. The
Group has established a communication mechanism for stakeholder
expectations and concerns and proactively builds a relationship of
mutual trust. The people and groups that significantly influence the
Group's activities or are significantly affected by its operations serve
as our key stakeholder group.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group identifies key ESG issues through its annual materiality
assessment. The Board and the ESG workgroup have reviewed the
results of the assessment and determined the key ESG issues that
are relevant and important to our stakeholders.

In the materiality assessment, we first identify potential ESG
reporting issues. The issues are then being analysed to determine the
importance to the Group's stakeholders and business in aspects such
as the Group's strategies, market development and stakeholders’
concerns. Following this, the identified ESG issues are listed,
discussed and given priority. Finally, it is evaluated and approved by
the management.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is committed to complying with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection. It adopts effective systems
and policies as set out below to achieve resource efficiency, energy
saving, and waste reduction. The Group strictly complies with
applicable laws and regulations concerning environmental protection
and pollution control, including, but not limited to: Noise Control
Ordinance, Water Pollution Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal
Ordinance, Air Pollution Control Ordinance, and Public Health and
Municipal Services Ordinance.

e  Environmental Management System: Our environmental
management system sets out our commitment to controlling
and maintaining a high standard of environmental protection.
Our goal is to support environmental protection and to prevent
pollution in balance with socio-economic needs as well as to
address the needs of a broad range of interested parties.

e Waste Management Policy: Our waste management policy
sets out our commitment in reducing our impact on the
environment by managing waste efficiently and sustainably.
During the Reporting Period, the Group also engaged proper
suppliers for arrangement of waste disposal in a professional
manner.

e Environmental-related Management Systems: Our
environmental management system has been independently
certified against ISO 14001:2015.

No material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
had been identified during the Reporting Period.
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RIE -

HEREGRS

A1. Emissions
Al.1: Air Emissions

Dust is generated from construction activities and material
transportation. We introduce mitigation measures to
control dust generated from projects and dark smoke
from equipment or vehicles, for example, washing vehicles
before leaving the construction site, spraying water or
dust suppression chemicals in construction sites, strictly
prohibiting open burning of wastes and other refuse on
sites, etc. We perform proper and scheduled maintenance
for the equipment or vehicles to ensure no excessive dark
smoke emission.

A1, BERD

Al

SR

LR R HERSELNE - R
PIERER AR AR FE B SR IE IR B EE AV
ERREBRERELNRE - MEEF
FRETHAS E > ERETIHE
BKRHE(LER  BEETHERXR
WeERERY) R AR - FPIHRE
HEMETTEE N E R E - URER
TeHMBZMRE -

A12: Greenhouse Gas (“GHG ") Emissions A2 BERE ([ BERE|)HK

GHG emissions from the Group is generated mainly from REBERBRERBEREZERE E
the consumption of mobile fuel (i.e. gasoline for the AR (BN 80 R 32 B (52 A a0 /0m ) B FE
vehicles and equipment). The vehicles and equipment - BRARHNERERRERARAER
consuming fuel are used for daily business operations. XGEE o MBREEERALY
Their combustion generates several air emissions including wmaty —S BRI RABERE
Nitrogen Oxides, Sulphur Oxides, Carbon Dioxide, and KLY HETE R R R ©
Respiratory Suspended Particles.
In 2022, the Group set target to reduce 5% of GHG R-ZZB__F AEEEN-ZT_—
emissions by 2027, using 2022 as the baseline year. The FREEF HEZZTZLFREE
following presents the Group’s GHG emissions for the REERBIS %A E - TX 23| AEH
Reporting Period: RS HERR EREEEN
GHG emissions from use of vehicles and EHEH R R 1Y im = 5 he PE
equipment
Aspects 1.2 Unit 2023 2022
fEm1.2 B —EZ=FE —F-—F
Nitrogen Oxides (NO ) kg 127.0 75.0
REULPI(NO,) Fr
Sulphur Oxides (SO kg 1.2 0.7
e L#(s0) Fr
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) kg 4,376.0 4,305.0
—&UYLHx(COo,) Fr
Respiratory Suspended Particles kg 5.9 3.5
BRSNS =k T
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Hazardous Waste

To the best of our knowledge, the Group was not aware
of any significant amount of hazardous wastes generated
in our projects and offices due to our business nature.
Thus, no data was recorded, and no policy has been
formulated.

Non-hazardous Waste

The Group acknowledges possible environmental impacts
of non-hazardous waste generated during its operations
such as site clearance, excavation works, and construction
works. During the Reporting Period, the Group complied
with the Waste Disposal Ordinance and had 7 projects
that disposed of soil (FY2021/22: 9 projects). The
following presents the relevant information:

Al3.

A4

RIR - HERERHRS

BEEERY

BEIAIFA - HRIEFIREHLEE -
AEBES FNHNERMAOEE RFAE
EEEAAEAZTEEY - Bt - X
EECIRAREE - TMESIEARRRECR o

EEZERY

AEBFERHKQETF (NSHERE
PRIENRZETR)HPELENES
BEZEV AR IRIBIEN T E - I3RS
iR - ANEBEETEYEEIEG)
B7EEE(ZE=— / ZZ8F : 9
HE)#ETTLERE - TX 2518
B

Non-hazardous waste in total and intensity BEERYBREREE

Aspects 1.4 Unit 2023 2022
[EE1.4 B —E-=F —T-oCF
Construction disposal: Soil tonnes 214,212 801,934
BEREY 1 ]

Construction disposal intensity tonnes per construction 30,602 89,104

project
REREMEE ey gsilileEarys
Going forward, the Group will continue refining its wastes
reduction measures and disclose relevant results where
appropriate. The Group will seek continuous improvement
in waste management performance by setting appropriate
goals and objectives throughout the organisation.
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RIE -

AlS:

Al6:

HEREGRS

Measures to Mitigate Emissions

To reduce emissions from vehicles, employees are
encouraged to take public transports. The Group plans
schedule and arranges the route of its vehicles to avoid
unnecessary travel and/or congestion. To reduce its
emissions relating to business travel, the Group avoids
non-essential business travel and encourages employees
to take low-emissions travelling methods. Equipment or
vehicle which generates excessive dark smoke shall be
prohibited from use and be repaired immediately. Engines
of idle machines shall be switched off to prevent exhaust
air emission. We conduct regular monitoring during the
construction period for required projects.

Wastes Reduction and Initiatives

The Group is committed to reducing its impact on the
environment by managing its waste in an efficient and
sustainable manner. Each member of the Group, as well as
subcontractors, should take reasonable steps to avoid the
generation of waste by well planning of the works. The
mitigating measures include but not limited to: avoidance
of generation of waste and materials, consideration of
passing on waste materials and equipment to others
before disposal, segregation waste for recycling for the
reduction of waste onsite, and disposal of waste to
comply with statutory and regulatory requirements.

A2. Use of Resources

AL5 BB

Al6:

AR EWPR - RPIEEEB R
DNHERE - NREERBFERL ZH
HE@RG  NBRTUENHTT
K/ SR - BB EEBHITER
BVEEIR - NSRBI R N B Z MR H
ThERESEFERERN LTS
X FEIEREEBLRENRBHL
B WERZHEEEMERENE
W o AR B A M 2R S B AR LR
PR - HMERTHEEMFER
HETTE HAESA

HER
AEBHNONUABREAFENT A
EEBERY  WREEHRENY
2 - AEBMEBHEKERFNUEDSE
BEFRINAERR  BBZERET
R RELERY - ERIERERE
BRARNERELEZRY LM - Z
BHEEANERY LR EEGEEM
7 BEEM DB RIMIAR RS RE
BY UWRERREELEEERRE
FEEY) o

A2. ERERA

A2.1: Energy Consumption A2.1: BEJRE#E
The following presents the Group's direct energy TX2FREENHREHENEERE
consumption for the Reporting Period: TRBRE
Direct Energy Consumption in total and EEREFEEEREE
intensity
Aspects 2.1 Unit 2023 2022
fEm2.1 B —E-=F —ECOCF
Electricity Usage kWh 11,826 11,634
HE T ELR
Electricity Usage Intensity kWh/office 11,826 11,634
AERE TREMAE
In 2022, the Group set target to reduce 5% of energy NR-E-——F KAEFRU—FT——
consumption by 2027, using 2022 as the baseline year. FEREME BT - F - ERAR
HFER 5% R IR o
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A22: Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

The Group believes that reducing energy use could be
mutually beneficial to the environment and the Group by
reducing the operating costs and creating long-term value
to its stakeholders. The Group encourages employees to
switch off electrical appliances whenever not in use and
all unnecessary lighting, air conditioners, and electrical
appliances before they leave the office.

A2.3: Water Consumption and Packaging Material
Owing to the nature of our operations, other than the
consumption of drinking water, the use of water is not
significant under our operations control. There is also an
absence of packing materials involved in our operations.
As such, the Group has not placed emphasis on the
development of policies in these areas.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

The Group believes that corporate development should not
come at the expense of the environment. By integrating
environmental consideration into our business strategies, we
aim to be an environmentally sustainable enterprise. In the
coming years, we would continue promoting GHG emission
reduction, energy and water resource conservation and
efficient use of natural resources. We believe that not only can
raising environmental awareness and reinforcing the positive
behavioral changes bring benefits to our financial situation, but
also to the future generations.

Climate Change

The Group recognises the importance of the identification and
mitigation of significant climate-related matters; therefore, the
Group is committed to managing the potential climate-related
risks which may impact the Group’s business activities. The
Group has established risk management policy in identifying
and mitigating different risks including climate-related risks.
The Board meets regularly and cooperates closely with key
management to identify and evaluate climate-related risks and
to formulate strategies to manage the identified risks.

A3.

A4.
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Through the above method, the Group identified the material
impacts on the Group's business arising from the following
risks:

Climate-related matters

Physical Risks:

The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather such
as typhoons, storms and heavy rains can disrupt the Group's
operations by damaging the power grid and communication
infrastructures, and injuring its employees during their work,
leading to reduced capacity and decreased in productivity, or
expose the Group to risks associated with non-performance
and delayed performance. To minimise the potential risks
and hazards, the Group has flexible working arrangements
and precautionary measures during bad or extreme weather
conditions.

Transition Risks:

The Group anticipates that there will be more stringent climate
legislations and regulations to support the global vision of
carbon neutrality. From a listed company’s perspective, we
acknowledge the increasing requirements of climate-related
information disclosures. One example is the update of the
ESG Reporting Guide in respect to significant climate-related
impact disclosures of an issuer. Stricter environmental laws
and regulations may expose enterprises to higher risks of
claims and lawsuits. Corporate reputation may also decline
due to failure to meet the compliance requirements for climate
change. The related capital investment and compliance costs
thus increase. In response to the policy and legal risks as well
as reputation risks, the Group regularly monitors existing
and emerging trends, policies and regulations relevant to
climate and be prepared to alert the top management where
necessary to avoid cost increments, non-compliance fines and/
or reputational risks due to delayed response.
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SOCIAL
B1. Employment and Labor Practices

The Group stringently complies with national and local laws
and regulations concerning employment and labor practices,
including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance, the
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance, and the Minimum Wage Ordinance.

B1.1: Employment Policies

The Group generally recruit our employees from the
open market. We intend to use our best effort to attract
and retain appropriate and suitable personnel to serve
our Group. Our Group assesses the available human
resources on a continuous basis and determines whether
additional personnel is required to cope with our business
development from time to time.

We believe that employees are our most invaluable assets.
It is our priority to ensure that the occupational health
and safety of all employees, subcontractor workers and
the surrounding communities to our construction sites is
adequately maintained. Our comprehensive occupational
health and safety management system which is certified
to be in compliance with OHSAS 18001 international
standard in order to provide our employees with a safe
and healthy working environment. We further strive
to continuously improve our occupational health and
safety management system in accordance with guidance
received from the Labor Department from time to time.

It is also our aim to enhance the well-being and
development of our employees. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group has put in place policies to ensure
that it treats all employees on an equal footing in matters
related to, among others, recruitment, promotion,
appraisals, discipline, remuneration and benefits,
compensation and dismissal, and working hours and rest
periods. An employee’s age, gender, family status, sexual
orientation, physical disability, ethnicity and religion would
not affect his career with us. During the Reporting Period,
we received no complaints regarding discrimination issues
from any of our stakeholders. Needless to say, we ensured
that no child nor forced labor was employed by the
Group. Apart from providing competitive remuneration
and benefits, we continue to support and nurture our
employees through staff development and training
programmes.
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The Group has devised a staff handbook for its employees
to understand important information relating to the
Group's human resources policies, rules, and work ethics
surrounding employment. It is an essential tool in helping
to define the expectations of both the management and
the employees, and also to protect them from unfair and/
or inconsistent treatment and discrimination.

Workforce

The Group had employed 136 full-time employees as
at 31 March 2023, all of whom are from Hong Kong
except for 1 is from the PRC. Out of the total number of
staff, 117 of our employees were male and 19 of them
were female. Majority of the workforce were within the
31-60 age group, accounting for 102 of our staff, while 7
employees were under 30 years old and 27 were over 60
years old.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s overall full-
time employee turnover rate was approximately 29%.
The employee turnover rate for male and female were
approximately 30% and 24% respectively.

B1.2: Health and Safety

The management of the Group is responsible for the
overall health and safety of employees. The Group
strictly follows relevant laws and regulations such as the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance. There was no
material non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations relating to occupational health and safety
which had material impact to the Group during the
Reporting Period.

We place emphasis on occupational health and work
safety and provide safety training to our staff covering
topics such as our safety measures and procedures for
reporting accidents. Due to the nature of works, risks
of accidents or injuries to workers are inherent. The
Group understands that preventive measures are way
more important than reactive measures. Therefore,
sufficient first-aid boxes have been equipped in the
office and construction areas in case any emergencies
happen and also we devised an occupational health and
safety management system to govern our workers and
subcontractors.
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Our project management team is responsible for
overseeing the implementation of our occupational health
and safety policies and ensuring that we comply with
applicable occupational health and safety standards and
laws. Our Group has put in place an internal safety manual
which is reviewed from time to time to incorporate
the best practices and to address and improve specific
areas of our safety management system. We require our
employees and our subcontractors’ employees to follow
our workplace safety rules as set out in the internal
safety manual. Our workplace and safety rules identify
common safety and health hazards and recommendations
on prevention of workplace accidents. We also provide
suitable personal protective equipment such as safety
helmet and safety boots to our employees based on the
type of works undertaken by them.

Our safety officer regularly provides guidance to our
workers and subcontractors on proper and safe working
practices. We may impose fine on or remove the
subcontractor who has repeatedly breached the internal
safety procedures from our internal approved list of
subcontractors. Subcontractor which failed to rectify its
breaches upon our requests will also be removed from
our internal approved list of subcontractors. We also hold
regular meetings with our subcontractors to discuss on
the implementation of safety measures and follow up with
any safety issues identified during the course of project
implementation.

Looking ahead, we would continue to promote
occupational health and safety to its employees and avoid
any work injury or accident by all means. Work injuries
will be reported according to our internal guidelines which
was set up with reference to the work injury reporting
requirement by the Labor Department. Based on our
occupational health and safety management system, we
ensured safety and health of our employees in connection
with the use, handling, storage and transport of articles
and substances; providing all necessary information,
instructions, training and supervision for ensuring safety
and health; providing and maintaining safe access to
and egress from the workplaces; and providing and
maintaining a safe and healthy working environment.

During the Reporting Period, 1 incident of workplace
accidents resulting in injuries to the Group’s employee
and/or subcontractor’'s employee arose, which led to
301 lost labor days (FY2021/22: 2 incidents of workplace
accidents arose, which led to 300 lost labor days). All
workplace accidents were fully covered by the relevant
insurance policies. The Group is pleased to report that no
fatality cases occurred during the Reporting Period.
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RIR - HERERERS

B1.3: Development and Training

The knowledge and skill levels of our employees are
vital to the Group’s success, and hence we provide
various types of training to our employees and subsidise
our employees to attend various training courses
covering areas such as technical knowledge relating to
the carrying out of foundation works, safety, first aid,
regulatory compliance and environmental matters. Such
training courses include our internal trainings as well
as courses organised by external parties such as the
Construction Machinery Technical Training Centre and
other training service providers. Employees carrying out
construction works at construction sites are generally
required to be registered pursuant to the Construction
Workers Registration Ordinance (Chapter 583 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), which imposes certain training
requirements on workers prior to registration with the
Construction Industry Council. As at the Reporting Period,
all of our employees carrying out construction works on
construction sites were registered under the Construction
Workers Registration Ordinance.

During the Reporting Period, the percentage breakdown
of employees trained and the average training hours
per employee, by gender and employee category are as
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follows:
Percentage Average
of employees training hours
trained per employee
(%) (hours)
BEES
ZIEE FHZ IR
B 7 (%) (/NEF)
By Gender BRI
e  Female o I 100 8.0
e Male o FH 100 8.0
By Employee Category RIEESEHR
e Senior Management o SREERE 100 8.0
e Middle Management o HREEE 100 8.0

B14: Labor Standards

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and
regulations such as the Employment Ordinance, the
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance, and the Minimum Wage
Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong. Background checks
were conducted for new employees to ensure that no
teenagers under the statutory minimum working age
would be employed. All employees must provide their
personal identity documents to prove their ages and
identities. During the Reporting Period, no material case of
non-compliance with local child and forced labor related
laws and regulations were noted.
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B2. Operating Practices
B2.1: Supply Chain Management

As mentioned, our quality management system which
governs our daily operation for quality control and
improvement meets the requirements of 1ISO 9001:2015.
Our internal policies and thus the procurement process
are governed by this standard. We maintain an internal
approved list of suppliers set up by the board of directors.
Only suppliers fulfilling our stringent quality standards can
be added to the list for our purchases.

Under our policies, the Group would only purchase
supplies from these approved suppliers to ensure quality of
our services and purchases. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had engaged 138 (FY2021/22: 139) suppliers
and subcontractors while all of them were located in Hong
Kong. Further, with reference to the quality requirement
of our projects, our project management team would
also hold meetings with suppliers to communicate our
requirements, while at the same time inspect the quality
of the goods and services provided by the suppliers from
time to time. Upon reception of services and goods, the
project management team is responsible for the inspection
of the delivered goods and services to ensure they can
meet our quality requirements before settling payment.

For subcontractors’ quality management, similar to that of
purchasing, we maintain a list of approved subcontractors.
Regular inspection on the quality of works and progress
as delivered by our subcontractors would be performed
by our project management team. We have made it clear
to our subcontractors that compliance with the labor laws
and regulations is mandatory when handling safety and
employment matters at construction sites.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify
any non-compliances in relation to safety and labor laws
and regulations.

B22: Product Responsibility

Achieving and maintaining high quality standard for
projects are the most important for the sustainable
growth of the Group. The Group strives to maintain good
relationship with our major customers to establish good
reputation and to gain future business opportunity.
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HEREGRS

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with any laws and
regulations in Hong Kong related to product health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of redress
including but not limited to, the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance and Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, that
would have a significant impact to the Group. There was
no complaint received during the Reporting Period. Given
the Group's business nature, the Group was not involved
in the sale of products, therefore disclosure on product
recall procedures and number of products recalled are not
applicable.

RBERE - £ EREERTR
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B2.3: Anti-corruption B3 RE)S
Over the years, we have witnessed no incidences of BEEE  KREBERWEZE(EMH
suspected or actual bribery, extortion, fraud and money RERER  BR - MEFaokiEE
laundering activities occurring within the Group. We stand % o RMIER EMETRMERERE
firmly by our anti-corruption policies and procurement EHERNEFMASRETHE R
practices as stated in our internal manuals which HIEER BREEEMNREEE &
comply with applicable laws. Acceptance of kickbacks, ABER Sk H M E TS AR R I [E
commissions or any form of benefit is strictly prohibited 0 ASEREABTRE ©
during any procurement exercise, contract negotiation or
other business dealings.
During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware R EHME - EBEBEMILHE -
of any material non-compliance with any laws and B BMFRAERESE - AKEHT
regulations in Hong Kong related to bribery, extortion, MEFEMEEEROANEEEERY
fraud and money laundering including but not limited to, EHEEERBEERRN - BEFED
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, that would have a PR P77 L BB AR 61D o
significant impact to the Group.

B24: Whistleblowing policy B24 . BIBCR
In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG EEGORM-ERRECK - UFE
Code, the Board adopted a whistleblowing policy. It EERTRAIEED.2.60%  ZBE
provides employees and the relevant third parties who REIREAREEZIZNEBEEE=H
deal with the Group (e.g. customers, suppliers, creditors (fFlanE R - e - BRARER
and debtors) with guidance and reporting channels on AVRHIES| RRMERE - LEEMIE
reporting any suspected improprieties in any matters FTEEARMERNEEBENTMASE
related to the Group directly addressed to the designated BEPEAERTETR -
person.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is designated HUTE  BREEGEFROEETE
to receive the relevant complaints for this purpose. All REWRBHEEFHNEEA - FIBEW
reported matters will be investigated independently FHESEER AL - RFTEERA
and, in the meantime, all information received from a BEN—UERUANRBFAGHDES
whistleblower and its identity will be kept confidential. RE o
The Board and the Audit Committee will periodically EEghBERZESHTERRARR
review the whistleblowing policy and mechanism to R R el - iR AL AKAE o
improve its effectiveness.
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B25: Confflict of Interest Management

In order to prevent employees from not taking
corresponding measures because of their personal
interests, the Group has formulated the “Declaration
of Interest” which provides guidelines and procedures
to employees in exercising their utmost good faith and
honesty in all transactions involving their duties and under
no circumstances use their positions or knowledge gained
for their own personal benefits. Employees must ensure
that there is no conflict of interest between their personal
interests and their duties, obligations and responsibilities
to the Group. Those who have or have had a personal
relationship with related person where a conflict of
interest is perceived should provide written declarations at
the earliest possible opportunity.

B3. Community

B3.1: Community Investment

The Group strives to implement corporate social
responsibility and actively participates in public welfare
activities. No formal policy on community investment has
been established. Owing to the nature of our business,
we are not required to label any products or to advertise
our services. Further, we generally do not handle personal
data and, as such, are exposed to minimal risks of
breaching privacy laws.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
temporarily suspended the organisation and participation
of charitable and voluntary activities.

FUTURE APPROACH TO SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

In the future, we will:

continue to raise our staff and subcontractors’ awareness in
relation to environmental protection;

maintain the highest standards for occupational health and
safety to protect our staff members and the communities
located in the vicinity of our operations; and

further extend our care to the community by participating in
more charity services.
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EREAHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability. The Company is committed to achieving and
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance, as our Board
believes that good and effective corporate governance practices are
key to obtaining and maintaining the trust of the shareholders of the
Company and other stakeholders, and are essential for encouraging
accountability and transparency so as to sustain the success of the
Group and to create long-term value for the shareholders of the
Company.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). To the best knowledge of
the Board, the Company has complied with the CG Code during
the Year and up to the date of this report, with the exception of the
deviation from code provision C.2.1 as explained below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors
in respect of the Shares (the “Code of Conduct”). After specific
enquires by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standard of dealings set out in
the Code of Conduct during the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes
responsibility for its leadership and control and is collectively
responsible for promoting the Company’s success by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors make decisions objectively in the
best interests of the Company. The Board meets regularly and Board
meetings are held four times a year at quarterly intervals.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established.

Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung currently assumes the role of both chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
considers that both roles being held by Mr. Yip will provide a strong
and consistent leadership to the Company which will facilitate
effective planning and efficient management of the Company.
Furthermore, having considered Mr. Yip's extensive experience in
the foundation industry, the relationships Mr. Yip has built with
customers and the historical development of the Group, the Board
considers that it is beneficial for the Group to have Mr. Yip continue
to act as both chairman and chief executive officer of the Company.
In order to maintain good corporate governance and fully comply
with the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board will
regularly review the need to appoint different individuals to perform
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer separately.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) so that
there is an independent element on the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgement, and that non-executive Directors
should be of sufficient calibre and number for their views to carry
weight.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
seven Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung
(chairman of the Board and chief executive officer)
Ms. Kwan Chui Ling
Mr. Lin Rida (appointed on 4 November 2022)
Mr. Bu Lei (@ppointed on 5 July 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Cheng Shing Yan
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest
Mr. Tang Sher Kin
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code states that the Board should
meet regularly and the Board meetings should be held at least four
times each year at approximately quarterly intervals with active
participation of a majority of Directors, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication.

The attendance records of each of the Directors at the Board
meeting, committee meetings and AGM held during the Year and
up to the date of this report are set out in the table below:

EENZEEHEERHFETE

>

TEERTRMNTANGEXECS ERTH =
SRETHERTSE i%??%ﬂzd\li;ﬁiﬁ
X - ROASERE—K  IHABHEEES
HEBEME TR NEHRE -

mE

BESHEAFEMNAEEARE APRITNES
e ZESERMBERBFAENRENT
=&

Board Audit Nomination Remuneration

meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM
Name of Director BENZ g ERZER E£ZEg ¥MzEE RREEAE
Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung EREtis 6/6 N/ATE 4/4 33 1/1
Ms. Kwan Chui Ling BERLT 6/6 N/ATEF N/AT3EF N/AT S F 17
Mr. Lin Rida WHELE 33 N/ATE 22 1/1 N/ATiE A
Mr. Bu Lei NEgTE N/ATEF NATER NATER N/ATE R N/AT @A
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan BERLZ L 6/6 5/5 4/4 33 17
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest HERASE 6/6 5/5 11 33 1/1
Mr. Tang Sher Kin LR 6/6 5/5 4/4 1/1 1/1

The forthcoming AGM will be held on 11 August 2023.

Apart from the Board meeting, the Chairman also held meeting with
the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
the executive Directors during the Year.

The biographical details of each of the Directors and their
relationships are set out in the section headed “Directors and senior
management” of this report.

In compliance with the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed
three independent non-executive Directors representing more than
one-third of the Board and at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independent non-executive Directors
have brought in a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in the Board meetings and serving on various
Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors have
made various contributions to the Company.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence, and the
Company considers such independent non-executive Director to be
independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

Appropriate insurance coverage in respect of legal action against the
Directors has been arranged by the Company.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

In accordance with the articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Any new Director appointed by the
Board (i) to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company following his/her
appointment and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting;
and (i) as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM") and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company and ensures that it is managed in the best interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole. The Board is primarily
responsible for formulating the business strategy, reviewing and
monitoring the business performance of the Company, approving
the financial statements and annual budgets as well as directing,
supervising the management of the Company, assessing any
significant acquisitions and disposals and approving the public
release of periodic financial results. Execution of operational matters
and the powers thereof are delegated to the management by the
Board with clear directions. The Board is regularly provided with
management update report to give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the performance, position, development and
prospects of the Company in sufficient detail.

The Board is also responsible for the corporate governance functions
of the Group, which includes:

To develop and review of the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

—  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

—  To review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

—  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and directors; and

— To review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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The Group is keen to strengthen its market position and
generate value for its investors while constantly looking out for
its stakeholders to attain sustainable development. The Group
formulates and implements the following strategies and plans to
achieve its objectives and value.

—  The Board encourages its members to discuss the underlying
value of its culture at board meetings to align and improve its
strategies;

— The Group provides sufficient resources to execute its
strategies;

—  The management teams report to the Board at least every
quarter so that the Board can regularly evaluate the core value
of its culture;

—  Open communication is always available between the Board
and the Company'’s workforce;

—  The Board periodically monitors the Company’s conduct and
encourages holding the responsible individuals accountable
where any misalignment occurs;

—  Share option scheme is available for the Board to provide
incentives for any relevant parties in future;

—  Management teams regularly review the remuneration policies
of the employees; and

—  The Group maintains continuous communication with the
stakeholders to understand the potential impacts of its culture
and strategy.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To facilitate the work of the Board, the Board has established
three Board committees to oversee specific aspects of the Group’s
affairs, namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Each Board committee has its own terms
of reference relating to its authority and duties, which have been
approved by the Board and are reviewed periodically. The terms of
reference of each committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Each Board committee has also been provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and, upon reasonable request,
is able to seek independent profession advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Group's expense.
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Audit Committee

The Group established the Audit Committee on 19 February 2021
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and code provision D.3 of the CG Code. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to, among other things, review
and approve our Group's financial reporting process and internal
control and risk management system, oversee our audit process and
perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.
The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Ms. Cheng
Shing Yan, Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest and Mr. Tang Sher Kin. The
chairlady of the Audit Committee is Ms. Cheng Shing Yan.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee held 5 meetings, at which it has reviewed and discussed
the Company’s audited consolidated financial results for the Year,
including the accounting principles and practice adopted by the
Group, the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report, the interim report for the six
months ended 30 September 2022, the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems as well as the Group’s
internal audit function. The Audit Committee has also recommended
to the Board to consider the re-appointment of Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited (“GT") as the Company’s external independent
auditors at the forthcoming AGM.

Nomination Committee

The Group established the Nomination Committee on 19 February
2021 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and our
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on a regular
basis to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members; assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Committee consists of five members, namely
Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung, Mr. Lin Rida, Ms. Cheng Shing Yan, Mr.
Wong Yiu Kit Ernest and Mr. Tang Sher Kin. The chairperson of the
Nomination Committee is Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung.

The policy for the nomination of Directors, including the nomination
procedure and process, are to invite nominations from Board
members or Nomination Committee members. After undertaking
adequate due diligence in respect of any such nominee, the
Nomination Committee makes recommendations for the Board's
consideration and approval. In the context of re-appointment of
any existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
makes recommendations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation, for the proposed candidates to stand for re-
election at a general meeting.
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The Nomination Committee considers the following criteria in
assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate:

(@) reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the relevant
industry and other relevant sectors;

() commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention
to the Company’s business;

(d) diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional
or otherwise), skills and knowledge;

(e) the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;

(f) compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under the Listing Rules for the appointment of an independent
non-executive Director; and

(9) any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held 4 meetings, at
which it (i) assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, (i) appointed a new executive Director, and (iii)
recommended to the Board for consideration the re-appointment
of all the retiring Directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 26 August 2022.

Board diversity policy

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

Under the Board Diversity Policy, the Company considers diversity
of Board members to be achieved through consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All Board appointments are based on merit, and
candidates are considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy

to ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved
the objectives of its Board Diversity Policy for the Year.
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Remuneration Committee

The Group established the Remuneration Committee on 19 February
2021 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25
of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to, among other things, formulate
our remuneration policy, review and determine the terms of
remuneration packages of our Directors and senior management
and review and approve performance-based remuneration with
reference to our corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time. The Remuneration Committee consists
of five members, namely Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest, Mr. Yip Kwong
Cheung, Mr. Lin Rida, Ms. Cheng Shing Yan and Mr. Tang Sher Kin.
The chairperson of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Wong Yiu
Kit Ernest.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee held 3 meetings, at which it reviewed the remuneration
policy and structure for as well as the remuneration packages of all
Directors and the senior management. No Director was involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of
three years and such letter of appointment may be terminated by
either party giving at least one month’s notice in writing. Also, the
independent non-executive Directors are subject to re-election on
retirement by rotation at the AGM in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of their independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors namely
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan, Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest and Mr. Tang
Sher Kin to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules for the Relevant Period.
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The Board established the following mechanisms to increase the
credibility of independents views.

—  Directors are entitled to seek external independent legal and
other professional advice for performing their duties. Separate
independent professional advice is always available upon their
request;

—  The Board (led by an independent non-executive Director) has
conducted evaluation of the directors’ (including independent
non-executive Directors) performance every half year through
questionnaires, interviews and/or observations. Criteria for
evaluation include (i) board meeting attendance; (i) whether
they actively participated in discussion; (iii) whether they had
the motivation and integrity required; (iv) whether they had or
were capable to devote sufficient time to make contributions to
the Group; (v) whether they had the business experience and
skills to effectively oversee the management; and (vi) whether
they were independent. The aforementioned criteria are for
by no means exhaustive or decisive. Management, external
advisers and key stakeholders such as shareholders are also
encouraged to provide useful feedback;

—  The Chairman welcomes any nomination of directors. The
Board deploys multiple channels for identifying suitable
candidates, including directors’ referrals, management, advisors
of the Group and external executive search firms. Candidates
will be shortlisted by the Nomination Committee and the
Nomination Committee will evaluate the candidate based on
the aforementioned criteria. The Board has the final authority
to determine suitable candidates to be elected as directors; and

—  The Group has received annual written confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Director in respect of their
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS" TRAINING AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director receives a formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and business and is fully aware of a director’s
responsibilities under applicable statues and common law, the Listing
Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s
business and governance policies. The Company will from time to
time provide briefings to all Directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills relating to their duties and responsibilities.

All Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expense and they are requested to provide the
Company with their training records. According to the training
records maintained by the Company, all Directors had attended
training sessions on obligations, duties and responsibilities of
directors during the Relevant Period and had provided details of
their training records to the Company.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has established and maintained the procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct. Other
employees of the Group who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company are also subject to dealing restrictions.
The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information or any use of such information for the advantage
of any individual. Inside information and other information which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules will be
announced on the respective websites of Stock Exchange and the
Company in due course.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Ho Cheung was appointed by the Board as the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) since 17
February 2021. The biographical details of Mr. Wong are set out
under the section headed “Directors and senior management”.
During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that he
had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
accordance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the Year, the remuneration bands of senior management is
listed as follows:

BT E S
RWAE  BRERBOHMEBIIRNT -

No. of person(s)

Band of remuneration (HK$) HENEE (B T) A
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 07702 1,000,000 7T 4
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000/ %2 2,000,0007% 7T 1

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5
highest paid employees are set out in notes 12 and 13 respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibility to ensure the financial statements are published
in a timely manner. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report as annexed to this report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fee paid/payable to the external independent
auditor of the Company and its affiliates is as follows:

BFHEER ORI ERENFMOE—FFHE
D RIERERE M RAM E1213 -

ESHGE U BHRRARNER

FMAER SRS BRI 5
EWARMBEM A EH A EB O ELE
RERERNEATRAREE -

<

EFNERFEAARRAEENNHRER - &
" =i
BEtE

R BSNSIE L AZ M H AR BAR S B 155
RO MERTERNERINARE B
UM

BIYREAME
RAEE « B/ AR RGNS BSIAZ BT &
HMBARANBRIIRNT -

HK$
Description il HBTT
Audit Services B R
Annual audit fee FEETER 1,000,000
Grand total 45 1,000,000
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance and
review of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and review of their effectiveness. The Board must ensure that the
Company establishes and maintains effective risk management and
internal control systems to meet the objectives and safeguard the
interests of the shareholders and the assets of the Company.

The Board oversees the Group's overall risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. At the same time, the
Group endeavours to identify risks, control impact of the identified
risks and facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating
measures.

The Group does not have an internal audit department but the
Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a need
for such an internal audit department. Given the Group’s relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, the Board, as supported
by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for risk management
and internal control systems of the Group including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Group's risk management and internal control system features
the following processes to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks, and review the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems, as well as resolve material internal control
defects:

e Members of the Board/Audit Committee discuss with the
external independent auditor key issues in relation to internal
controls, audit findings and risk management;

e The Board/Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting
system and internal control procedures; in this process,
management is principally responsible for the preparation of
Group financial statements including the selection of suitable
accounting policies;

e The external independent auditor is responsible for auditing
and attesting to Group financial statements and report to
the management of the Company from time to time on
any weakness in controls which come to their attention;
the Board/Audit Committee oversees the respective work of
management and external auditors to ensure the management
has discharged its duty in respect of having an effective internal
control procedures.
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During the Year, the Board had conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system which covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions of the Group. The Board
considered the risk management and internal controls systems of
the Group to be adequate and effective for the Year.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
aimed to manage, rather than eliminating, the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and thus can only provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the adequate
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
the budget accounting and financial reporting.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening general meetings by
shareholders

Pursuant to the Articles, and the applicable legislation and
regulation, in particular the Listing Rules (as amended from
time to time), the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM"). EGMs shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the Company Secretary for the purpose requiring an EGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposit it to the Board or the
Company Secretary by mail at Unit 2909-2910, 29/F, The Octagon,
6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such requisition should specify clearly
the name of the eligible shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their
shareholding, the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the details of
the business(es) proposed to be transacted in the EGM, and must be
signed by the eligible shareholder(s) concerned together with a sum
of money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by shareholders concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.
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The requisition will be verified with Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company and upon their
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the Board
will convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the requirements under the Articles to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as
not in order or the shareholders concerned have failed to deposit
sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for the said
purposes, the eligible shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM.

If, within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles for
including a resolution at an EGM. The requirements and procedures
are set out above in the paragraph headed “Procedures for
Convening General Meetings by Shareholders”.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the
Board

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationship. Shareholders
are encouraged to send their enquiries to the Board by post to the
principal place of business set out in the section headed “Corporate
Information” in this report. Shareholders may also make enquires
with the Board at the general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board strives to maintain on-going dialogue with shareholders
and the investment community. The Company has established
a shareholders communication policy to set out the Company’s
procedures in providing the shareholders and investment community
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company.

Latest information on the Group including, but not limited to,
annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements, and notices
of AGMs are update on the website of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and on the website of the Company
(www.kwong-luen.com.hk).

In addition, the Company regards the AGM as an important event
as it provides an opportunity for direct communication between the
Board and its shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the AGM.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended
31 March 2023, a special resolution has been passed at the AGM
held on 26 August 2022 to adopt the second amended and restated
articles of association of the Company in order to comply with the
recent amendments to the Listing Rules. The major amendments are
summarised as follows:

1. to provide that the Company must hold an annual general
meeting in each financial year and such annual general meeting
must be held within six months after the end of the Company’s
financial year;

2. to provide that any director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first annual general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall then
be eligible for re-election;

3. to expressly state that shareholders shall have the right to speak
and vote at a general meeting except where a shareholder is
required by the Listing Rules to abstain from voting to approve
the matter under consideration;

4. to change the requirement for a special resolution to remove
an auditor to an ordinary resolution;

5. to state the financial year end of the Company; and

6. other amendments to better align with the wordings in the
Listing Rules and the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands.

A copy of the second amended and restated articles of association
of the Company is published on the designated website of the Stock
Exchange and the website of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

The Board is pleased to submit this report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business activity of the Company is that of investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REORGANISATION AND SHARE OFFER

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 20 May 2020. Its Shares
were listed on the Stock Exchange on 11 March 2021. Pursuant
to the reorganisation of the Group in connection with the
Listing, the Company underwent a corporate reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding company
of the Group on 17 February 2021. Details of the Reorganisation
are set out in the section headed “History, Reorganisation and
Corporate Structure — Reorganisation” to the Prospectus.

DIRECTORS

The Directors at who held the office during the Year and up to date
of this report is as follows:

Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung (Executive Director)
Ms. Kwan Chui Ling (Executive Director)
Mr. Lin Rida (Executive Director)
(appointed on 4 November 2022)
Mr. Bu Lei (appointed on 5 July 2023)
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan (Independent non-executive Director)
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (Independent non-executive Director)
Mr. Tang Sher Kin (Independent non-executive Director)

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles, Mr. Lin Rida, Mr.
Bu Lei and Mr. Tang Sher Kin will retire from the Board by rotation
at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Company are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” of this report.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence in accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and all independent non-executive Directors are
considered to be independent.
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RESULTS/BUSINESS REVIEW

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 79 to 159 of this report. The business
review of the Group for the Year, which includes the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, an analysis using financial
key performance indicators of the Group’s business, particulars
of important events affecting the Group, an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, and discussion on
the Company’s environmental policies and performance and the
relationships with its stakeholders, can be found in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and
Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report”, “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” and “Independent Auditor’'s Report” of
this report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 160 of this
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

A statement of the reserves available for distribution to shareholders
of the Company as at 31 March 2023 is set out in the “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” and note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

HEEKOE
AEERAERENEEHNAREFTIEI1598
MEEMBREK - ARERAFR Z XML
(BREAKEMEEREZRAR N THBARE - &
RE B RAREREZIERYARERBEO DT -
TEARBENEASMFE  AREAKERSZ
A REAR R R AR A R BN AR RIRB R &
RIS AR s AR 77 B R R FR ) B AR F 3R
[EREHRE] - [ERESWEIN]  [REER
HE] - [RE - g REWME | MBI
WEISE - MBRBRAREZ 8D °

BHE
AEERBEAEMBREEOEFIREAIRE
E A MBS (R0 @B KA BB R BRN
RREF160H - ZMEL TEREBRZIHR
RI—HH o

Y% - BRERRE
REERAEEONE - BERRELHFER
RIRA MR 14 -

€N
RABIRAF RO BB F TN AR S M 154
RI$EE25 ©

RER T D IRGEE
R-B-=£=A=1—8  AHSRTALA
RN BRI A SR PR  ReA B
TR T3 -

2022/23 ANNUAL REPORT




DIVIDEND POLICY

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board takes into account, inter alia:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;
(i) capital and debt level of the Group;

(i) future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development needs;

(iv) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders;

(v) the general market conditions; and
(vi) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands and
any other applicable laws, rule and regulations and the Articles. The
dividend policy of the Company will be reviewed by the Board from
time to time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be
proposed or declared in any specific period.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend the declaration of any
final dividend for the Year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S SECURITIES

The Board confirms that during the Year, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
Laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2023 AGM will be held on 11 August 2023. The notice of
the AGM will be published and dispatched to shareholders of the
Company in the manner as required by the Listing Rules in due
course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Tuesday, 8 August 2023 to Friday, 11 August 2023,
both days inclusive, during which no transfer of Shares will be
effected. In the case of Shares, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at 2103B, 21/F, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 7 August 2023.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19 February
2021 (the "Adoption Date”). The terms of the Share Option
Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The following is a summary of the principal terms of
the Share Option Scheme:

(A) Purpose of Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to reward the
participants (the “Participants”) who have contributed or
will contribute to our Group and to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of our Company and the
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(B)

@

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

Our Board may, at any time during the period for which the
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective, make an offer for
options to (i) any directors (including executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors)
and employees of any member of our Group; and (ii) any
advisers, consultants, distributors, contractors, subcontractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, promoters, service providers of any member
of our Group.

Payment on acceptance of option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant to our Company on
acceptance of the option offer as consideration for the grant.

(D) Subscription price

(E)

The subscription price (“Subscription Price”) shall be a price
determined by our Board but in any event shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date on which
the option is offered to a Participant (“Offer Date"); (i) the
average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Shares.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of our Company shall not in aggregate
exceed the number of Shares that shall represent 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue as at the date upon which the
Share Option Scheme takes effect, which shall be deemed
to fall on the Listing Date (“Scheme Mandate”), which is
100,000,000 Shares representing 10% of issued Shares as
at the date of this report. For the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate, options which have lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the relevant scheme shall not be counted.
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(F) Maximum holding by option-holder

Unless approved by the shareholders in general meeting in
the manner prescribed in the Listing Rules, our Board shall not
grant options to any option-holder if it would result in the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued to that Participant
on exercise of his options (including both exercised and
outstanding options) granted and to be granted to such person
during any 12-month period exceeding 1% of the total Shares
then in issue.

(G) Timing for exercise of options

The period during which an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
("Option Period”) shall be a period of time to be notified by
our Board to each option-holder, which our Board may in its
absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not
be more than ten years from the Offer Date.

(H) Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing from the date on which the
Share Option Scheme takes effect in accordance with its terms,
after which period no further options will be granted but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect in all other respects. In particular, all options granted
before the end of such period shall continue to be valid and
exercisable after the end of such period in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, no option has
been granted or agreed to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the Year attributable to
the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:
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%
SALES HE
— The largest customer —&AEF 55
— Five largest customers —RAAREPF 99
PURCHASES 23
— The largest supplier —RAHER 23
— Five largest suppliers —hARHER 48

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
customers or suppliers noted above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, details of significant transactions with its related
parties or transactions undertaken in the normal course of business
are set out in the note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
None of those transactions constitutes a disclosable connected
transaction pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND OTHER
INFORMATION

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, the Underlying Shares or
Debentures of the Company and Its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to the required
standard of dealings as referred to in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were
as follows:

I.  Long position in the ordinary Shares
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Number of
Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest interested shareholding
BEBEERN
EEHE REEME BRBEE BEBED L
Mr. Yip Interest in a controlled corporation 561,130,000 56%
Interest held jointly with another person
Interest of spouse (Note)
BhA Rt AR R
HEM A T HFERFAEZE
Ao s (P 5T)
Ms. Kwan Interest in a controlled corporation 561,130,000 56%
Interest held jointly with another person
Interest of spouse (Note)
M+ Rt AR R

BEHE A A+ HE R AR
Ao Bt (MYRE)

Note: Kwong Luen Prosperity holding 561,130,000 Shares is
beneficially owned as to 50% and 50% by Mr. Yip and Ms.
Kwan respectively. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip and Ms. Kwan
are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Kwong Luen
Prosperity. Ms. Kwan is the spouse of Mr. Yip. Accordingly,
each of them is deemed or taken to be interested in all the
Shares which the other is interested for the purpose of the SFO.
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Il. Long position in the ordinary shares of associated
corporation — Kwong Luen Prosperity
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Il. REHLE - EHEEREBERTE

Number of
shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest interested shareholding
B BEERN
EEpE EatE RDBE REBED L
Mr. Yip Beneficial owner 2 50%
Bir4 EnEAA
Ms. Kwan Beneficial owner 2 50%
L+ BEmEEA
Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the B EXFIHEEEIN  RZE_=ZF=A
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any =t+—RB BEEFHIARANFETR

interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in the
Shares, and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 March 2023, the following parties (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) had interests of 5% or more
in the Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

ABRARR RIS E MBI AR (F&RF
7 R ERERBIEXVER) AR - HEREAR
MREREFPHEECLENARFREEZFH
NHAE 5&HI 5 352 16 A H T & S a2 1A]
BERmIIRE °

FERRRAMATRAATRG RE
BRI IEER AR

RZEZ=ZF=ZA=+—08  UTAL(EEK
RABEBITHABBRIN R AR
PIN/N WE'JJ% 5K HRE 50 5336 5B BRI E
SO AI5% Bk LA _E ARERS

Number of
Name of substantial Shares held/ Percentage of
shareholder Nature of interest interested shareholding
BEBAEERN
FERRER EEME R BE REBEDL
Kwong Luen Prosperity Beneficial owner (Note) 561,130,000 56%

R B % EanEA A

Note:  Kwong Luen Prosperity is beneficially owned as to 50% and 50% by
Mr. Yip and Ms. Kwan respectively. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yip and
Ms. Kwan are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Kwong
Luen Prosperity.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Company is
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in
the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

MisE . BHERAEEAERBELLIHERZEE50%
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SR AR BIRIEE H KA E KDIF 33615781
FHERMMERIORE -
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All executive Directors currently in office have entered into
service agreements with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date and shall continue unless
terminated by either party giving no less than three months’ written
notice served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Director has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated
by either party giving no less than one month’s written notice served
by either party on the other.

The term of service of a Director is subject to retirement by rotation
of Directors as set out in the Articles.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors who are proposed
to be re-elected at the forthcoming AGM has entered into a service
contract or an appointment letter with our Company or any of our
subsidiaries (other than contracts or appointment letters expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without the payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the Company’s
shareholders’ approval at general meetings and such emoluments
shall be determined by the Board and the Remuneration Committee
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group. Details of remuneration of the
Directors are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management’s remuneration, on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy, and on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of office or appointment.

Under the remuneration policy of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty; provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of any fraud or dishonesty by any of the Directors.

A directors’ liability insurance is in place to protect the Directors
against potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought
against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Details of the continuing connected transactions and related party
transactions are set out in the Directors’ Report and note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Notwithstanding the above, no transaction, arrangement or contract
that is significant in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a person
who at any time during the Year was a Director or his connected
entity had, directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at any
time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Except for the Share Option Scheme, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiary undertakings was a party to any arrangements to
enable Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Company’s business was entered into or existed during
the Year.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the controlling shareholders of the Company,
or any of their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) is interested in a business apart from the Group’s business
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
the Group'’s business during the Year, and is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rues.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of controlling shareholder of the Company, Mr. Yip, Ms. Kwan
and Kwong Luen Prosperity has confirmed to the Company of
their respective due compliance with the terms of the deed of non-
competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) during the Year
and up to the date of this report.

Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed compliance
of the Deed of Non-Competition and were satisfied that the terms
of the Deed of Non-Competition had been duly complied with and
enforced during the Year and up to the date of this report.

During the Year, the Board had not received any written
confirmation from any of our Directors in respect of interest in any
business (other than our Group) which is or is likely to be directly or
indirectly in competition with our business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

During the Year and as at the date of this report, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained a
sufficient amount of public float for its Shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited
by GT, who will retire at the end of the forthcoming AGM, and
being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of GT as the independent auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

Kwong Luen Engineering Holdings Limited
Yip Kwong Cheung

Chairman and executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

iR SCTE: S

GrantThornton
N [=]

To the members of Kwong Luen Engineering Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kwong
Luen Engineering Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 159, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Revenue recognition for construction services

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recognised
revenue from provision of construction services
amounting to HK$338,318,000.

The Group has recognised revenue from the provision of
construction services over time, using an input method.

The input method recognises revenue based on the
proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services. This involves the use of management judgements
and estimation uncertainty, including estimating the
progress towards completion of the services, scope of
deliveries and services required, total contract costs
incurred, forecasting the costs to complete a contract,
valuing contract variations, claims and potential liquidated
damages and estimating the provision for onerous
contracts.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.12, 4 and 5
to the consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
B HEN RS

Our audit procedures included:

e obtaining an understanding from management on
the budget costs and how the budget costs are
evaluated;

e understanding the controls of the Group over its
processes to record contract costs and contract
revenue, the calculation of the stage of completion
and the identification of onerous contracts, if any;

e  obtaining the breakdown of budgeted contract costs
and, on a sample basis, evaluated management’s
estimation of the budget contract costs;

e checking the basis of the budgeted revenue to
the underlying contracts and variation orders on a
sample basis;

e checking, on a sample basis, the contract costs
incurred to the amounts of costs recorded for the
direct labour costs, payment applications from
subcontractors, invoices from suppliers and payment
certificates issued by contract customers;

e checking the estimated total costs for satisfaction
of the construction contract to the subcontractors
and suppliers’ quotations and payroll record, and
comparing actual costs incurred with the estimated
total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services to assess the status of the projects on a
sample basis; and

e  assessing the adequacy of the relevant disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
By EENRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Estimation of expected credit losses (“ECL") on trade receivables and contract assets

As at 31 March 2023, the net carrying amount of
trade receivables and contract assets amounted to
HK$4,131,000 (net of ECL allowance of HK$102,000)
and HK$199,610,000 (net of ECL allowance of
HK$16,562,000) respectively.

The measurement on the Group's trade receivables and
contract assets under ECL approach was estimated by
management through the application of management
judgements and use of highly subjective assumptions,
such as the payment history and management'’s industry
knowledge and experience.

The impact of current economic factors and forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors were also
considered in management'’s assessment of the likelihood
of recovery from customers.

Management engaged external valuer to assist
management to perform the ECL assessment on the

Group's trade receivables and contract assets.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.6, 4, 17 and
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e

Our audit procedures included:

e Understanding the Group’s processes and controls
relating to the monitoring of trade receivables and
contract assets;

e evaluating the methodologies, inputs and
assumptions used by management in their ECL
assessment and their calculation of the ECL
allowance under the ECL approach;

e understanding and discussing with management
for their judgements, historical loss pattern and
basis of judgements used on such data under the
ECL approach; and understanding management'’s
procedures with the customers over aged receivables
or amounts in dispute, if any;

e  assessing the ECL allowance as at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account factors such as
the payment history and other relevant information;

e evaluating the historical loss rates and assumptions
made for current economic conditions and forward-
looking information;

e involving our engaged valuation specialist to assist us
to evaluate the methodologies and assumptions used

in the ECL calculation; and

e assessing the adequacy of the relevant disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information in
the 2023 annual report of the Company, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company assisted by the Audit Committee are
responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
By EENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
By EENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor, Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

28 June 2023

Lau Kwong Kei
Practising Certificate No.: P07578
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FeREkEMEEWNER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F=H=+—HIFEF

2023 2022
—g=-= —F-—
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BiteE FER FAT

Revenue & 5 338,318 548,839
Cost of sales BHE A (326,408) (502,672)
Gross profit EF 11,910 46,167
Other income and gains E A A R as 6 6,337 1,538
Administrative expenses THAX (11,074) (11,409)
Fair value gain on a financial asset BATEFABENSREE

at fair value through profit or loss 2 AHEWE 31 128 147
Expected credit losses (“ECL") on ERNEEEREEEE

contract assets ([FEHEERE]) 17 (7,428) (6,976)
Reversal of ECL/ECL) on Z S REW S IEEREEER

trade receivables Bm(5HR) 18 641 (665)
Finance costs BLE KA 7 (667) (541)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETS AT (EE),aR 9 (153) 28,261
Income tax credit/(expense) FTisRiE R,/ (Fk) 8 1,154 (4,742)
Profit and total comprehensive RATHEE AEM

income for the year attributable FRERMR2HE K=

to owners of the Company #zg 1,001 23,519

HK cents HK cents
AL il

Earnings per share attributable to  ZAAF#EAAEBLERER

owners of the Company

— Basic and diluted —HAREE 11 0.10 2.35

The notes on pages 85 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SRR R

As at 31 March 2023 R=F—=F=H=+—H

80

2023 2022
—E-=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FHT THET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B KEAE 14 56,049 62,904
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 15 690 1,360
Prepayments and deposits ENFIERES 19 232 232
Financial asset at fair value through BATERT ABZER
profit or loss SREE 16 4,625 4,497
Total non-current assets FREEELAE 61,596 68,993
Current assets REEE
Contract assets BHEE 17 199,610 171,938
Trade receivables =) e 18 4,131 22,257
Prepayments and deposits ENFIERES 19 19 63
Current tax assets BIEAFRIE & 1,997 4,170
Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEEY 20 25,361 42,646
Total current assets REEEAE 231,118 241,074
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and retention payables B ZRENFIERENTIE
IREE 21 27,772 22,527
Accruals and other payables FEEH B A R ELfth FE A~ 508 22 5,958 8,318
Secured bank loans HIEIRRITER 23 511 20,040
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 605 561
Total current liabilities REEEHEEE 34,846 51,446
Net current assets REBEERE 196,272 189,628
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 257,868 258,621
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e ERRR

As at 31 March 2023 R=FE = =F=H=+—H

2023 2022
—=E=E_= =S
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B e FHT THET
Non-current liabilities FHRBaE
Accruals and other payables FE&H B A e ELfth FE A~ /I8 22 263 263
Secured bank loans BEIPRITER 23 1,966 2,466
Lease liabilities HEARE 15 44 649
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE 24 6,474 7,123
Total non-current liabilities FREEEEEE 8,747 10,501
Net assets FEE 249,121 248,120
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners of the KL FIHEBASEN
Company
Share capital [ 25 10,000 10,000
Reserves it 26 239,121 238,120
Total equity EREEE 249,121 248,120

Yip Kwong Cheung

REH

Chairman and Executive Director

FERWTEE

The notes on pages 85 to 159 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Executive Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Py e B

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ

Share Share Retained Total
capital premium* earnings* equity
[N BoaE* RERF*  ERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHL FHT
(Note 25) (Note 26)
(Pf#E25) (P7E26)
Balance at 1 April 2021 RIZZ—FMA—AZ&EH 10,000 102,645 111,956 224,601
Profit and total comprehensive &R FI K 2 E WS 4258
income for the year - - 23,519 23,519
Balance at 31 March 2022 and RZZT==F=A=+—HRK
1 April 2022 “EFMA—RAzER 10,000 102,645 135,475 248,120
Profit and total comprehensive A& Al & 2 W s 4258
income for the year - - 1,001 1,001
Balance at 31 March 2023 R-B-=F=A=+—Hx
2323 10,000 102,645 136,476 249,121

* These reserves accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  *

HK$239,121,000 (2022: HK$238,120,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

ZEHERR RRERE MR AN S i
239,121,000/% 7T (= F = — 4 : 238,120,0007&
7E)

The notes on pages 85 to 159 are an integral part of these $85E 1598 KM it A% F4r A P TRK 4ARK

consolidated financial statements. 5

o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERAER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #2 —F = =#F=H=+—HIFFZF

2022
—F-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FBT
Cash flows from operating activities R& EEFERSRE
(Loss)/profit before income tax B ETSRLAT (E518 ) 57 (153) 28,261
Adjustments for: HATEEEL TR -
Finance costs REE R AN 7 667 541
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BEREEN
plant and equipment, net (Uezs) E5ia 55 9 (113) 2,042
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BB MEETE
equipment 14 13,661 13,732
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 15 670 774
Fair value gain on a financial asset BRAFEF AR RE
at fair value through profit or loss BEMNAFEYRZS 31 (128) (147)
ECL on contract assets ABHEETEEERE 17 7,428 6,976
(Reversal of ECLY/ECL on trade 5N IA
receivables (BB R ERR),
REEEEE 18 (641) 665
Operating cash flows before working LEESEHRINL LIRS
capital changes mE 21,391 52,844
Increase in contract assets BHIEEEN (35,100) (58,599)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 2 5 UL IE R 4> (1) 18,767 (16,986)
Decrease in prepayments and deposits B I8 K 324 5 > 44 6,252
Increase/(decrease) in trade and retention & 5 &I E IE&FEHIE
payables RESEM CRd 5,245 (656)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and other fEztEF &ﬁ’r@ﬁ’é@ﬁmlﬁ
payables CRA), /1 hn (2,360) 4,407
Cash generated from/(used in) wEmE/ (AR E
operations 7,987 (12,738)
Interest paid BEATHLE (637) (495)
Interest element of lease payments HE KT BEH (30) (46)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EEEENEH (1,997) (14,389)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BREFBFEH 4,675 =
Net cash generated from/(used in) KEFEBME(FTAEE
operating activities FEE 9,998 (27,668)
2022/23 FERE o EHIBERBRLQA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HRABERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ

2023
2=

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Cash flows from investing activities REZEFEBRERE

Purchase of property, plant and BEWZE BB REH

equipment (11,743) (41,255)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMZE - BE K&

plant and equipment FR1S 38 5,050 -
Net cash used in investing activities KEEESFTAR S 55 (6,693) (41,255)

Cash flows from financing activities BEEEFESRELHRE

Principal portion of lease payments HENFARE D (561) (738)
Proceeds from bank loans SRITERFATISRUA 30,736 60,471
Repayment of bank loans BBIBTER (50,765) (55,813)
Net cash (used in)/from financing BEEE(FTA), PR e

activities FEE (20,590) 3,920
Net decrease in cash and cash HERBREEEY

equivalents WD REE (17,285) (65,003)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F¥3E & MIEEEEY

of year 42,646 107,649
Cash and cash equivalents ERESRESEEY

at end of year 20 25,361 42,646

The notes on pages 85 to 159 are an integral part of these 85 1598 Mt A% EE S MR ARMAR
consolidated financial statements. 85 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BT IS s R MY 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F=H=+—HIFEF

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kwong Luen Engineering Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The
registered address of the Company is 71 Fort Street, PO Box
500, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-1106, Cayman Islands.
The principal place of business of the Company is located at
Unit 2909-2910, 29/F, The Octagon, 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) were principally engaged in the provision
of construction services in Hong Kong. There has been no
significant change in the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

Kwong Luen Prosperity Limited (“Kwong Luen Prosperity”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"),
is the immediate holding company of the Company. In the
opinion of the directors, Kwong Luen Prosperity is also the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$000"), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 28 June 2023.

—RER

B TRRERARAR([AAT])IRERR
ERERRNAEREREEMKIBER
NAE] o AA AWM HEA71 Fort Street,
PO Box 500, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1106, Cayman Islands ° KA R EZE &
FHE A BB AEEDHBOREER
BRAR2029122909-2910F °

ARBIRBEEBRRAT - RAFE - AR
AREMBAR(AEIAKE]) TEEE
BREERERERY - RAFE - A5E
MEBRRBWEEANE

EMEREGRAR(EHER])  EXB
RS ([ REBEZEHS ) EMKZHA
Al RARAMNBEERZERRAR - EFR
o BEEBRTNARNRRZ &R AT]

BREBEFHBEN  REMBHRRIAET
(TRT)27  MEBEENREREN
BT ([FBxT)

BE-T-=F=A=fALFEOE
AUMBBRREN -_E-_=F<A=-+/\H
B R TR -
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() [ J
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RRMIEE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ
1. GENERAL INFORMATION (continued) 1. —RER@®
Interests in subsidiaries RSB A RN ERE
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2023 RZEZ=FR-_FB-__F=A=+—
and 2022 are as follows: H - ARFKMBARFBEET -
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued attributable
registration ordinary/ to the Company
and business registered ARF
SR Type of share capital SR AL
Company name Bk legal entity BRTLE/ Direct Indirect  Principal activities
NEHB i HEABRER AR A HiE B FEXK
Kwong Luen Success  The BVI Limited liability Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited company
BHEXERLR  RERXES BARLA %70 100 - REER
Kwong Luen Hong Kong Limited liability HK$2 - 100  Provision of
Engineering company construction
Limited services in Hong
Kong
B ITRERAT BB BRAF 28T = 100 REBRMZERS
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAEBRME
POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1 RBEE

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"”) and the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in Note 3.

ZEFEEAMHRREREEEH
BmEEN([ERBHBREER ]
BREEESHMAG([EEEEA
') RMmE B ER N ERNE BB
BEER  FEGENRZRENS
M RBBERARGTRAGBH -

NN R EoPIN SRR WNCIL ST
ERBERTE  UBREBBMARS
FrERARES EMARA( EWR
RIDEBEREERE

RmERFEMERREEROEAN
BETBEN T XL - ZFEBRERA
2INEHFEERER  EREXR
BERRIN - RNFTRT REIERTBBR
BawEENRHAEERERRNE
2B ) IR E3HKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS ISR R L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss which has been measured
at fair value. The measurement bases are fully described in
the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power over the entity, only
substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the Group
and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from
the date it gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on sales of intra-
group asset are reversed on consolidation, the underlying
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements
of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to
ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted
by the Group.

2.1

2.2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR YRR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F=H=+—HIFEF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHEFEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued) 2.2 ZKEAREEm@m
In the Company’s statement of financial position, RARRZHBARRERR - [HEAF
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment loss LA SRR EE 1SR - BRIE
unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in a ZMB AR RBFEFENEENEE
disposal group. EEA -
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the B ARz EERARRIRRE R
Company on the basis of dividends received and 2B EWAR B AR - FTARR S (&
receivable at the end of the reporting period. All dividends e IR E T B R S B R B
whether received out of the investee’s pre- or post- FIPER)IIEAR R RHB S ER ©
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit
or loss.

2.3 Foreign currency translation 2.3 INEEBE
The consolidated financial statements are presented in REMEHRRAEBTEY BT A
Hong Kong Dollars, which is also the functional currency RARZINEEEE
of the Company.
In the individual financial statements of the consolidated REFE BB 2B MBEImEA - INE
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into RSER5E B 2 @R EERE S IE
the functional currency of the individual entity using the PIEERINEER o RIMEHR - 4b
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. HAENEBEERBGEHEZAN
At the end of the reporting period, monetary assets and INEEERIRE - REEZER 5 ME
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated RWEHRBREEREERBEMESL
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign 2B R W KR B8 - IRNER AR o
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the end of the reporting
period retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of RELKAFTEZIFEEKBEEHRIE
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated i.e. M E (BMEE AR S B HaE =i
only translated using the exchange rates at the transaction H) o
date).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B IS R AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAEHBEHMEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)
2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at
acquisition cost (including any cost directly attributable
to bringing the assets to the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the

24 V1% - BERRE
WME - BERRETIREAKARNE
ER(ERERRBNEEEEDERE
MARNSE BB IR TR EET
FOME RGO ERAA - B
AHREERTZEZEFNKA) 2

manner intended by the Group’s management, including
costs of testing whether the related assets are functioning
properly). They are subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful

R AR AR REHTE R REHRER
B(AE) I -

FrEABRENEMFTAIERFHR
BT DI RFER - AMHE ERAR

lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates HFIREE :

per annum:

Leasehold Shorter of estimated useful lives HEMERE BENMGAER
improvements and remaining lease terms of F HA & FlehFHHA

the assets (BT B%)

Plant and machinery 15% B & i d 15%

Office equipment 20% PN L E 20%

Motor vehicles 25% =zt 25%

Estimates of residual value and useful life are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

AR FBEERERFIRN S REH
RETRE RREERELFEE -

HREE S EFTEE M KRR S BRI H

G

28 £hH
1=F K

HEEENREEHNE

REE - WINMBE AR o

BREXAFABENREAERNEE
R—REREE - FIRIERTR
B5Z I8 B AERR A R R LB H a5 A A

Ry 7 R

Ak 32
Be /L

AREE 5% I8 B RANBE ] 2Rt

B -RIRXECEENONKEE -
FT B E AR A (AN E RRERA)R
% RN EE A ) B 5 T B 18 2 A A

& o

2022/23 EERE

REBMIEEZERERLA

89



90

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR YRR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ZZ —

ZF=A=1—HILFE

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial asset and substantially all of its
risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of
financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at the
transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”, all financial assets
are initially measured at fair value, in case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets, other than those designated and effective
as hedging instruments, are classified into amortised cost
and FVTPL.

The classification is determined by both:

— the entity’s business model for managing the
financial asset; and

—  the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that
are recognised in profit or loss are presented within
finance costs or other financial items, except for ECL on
trade receivables and contract assets which are presented
as separate items in profit or loss.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHEFEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

2.5 Financial instruments 25 £@MIA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B IS R AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (continued) 25 €@ T BEum

Financial assets (continued) A E @)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets ERHEENEETE
Debt investments BRRE

Financial assets at amortised cost BT EN A E

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets
meet the following conditions (and are not designated as
FVTPL):

— they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its
contractual cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income and
gains in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the
effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group’s cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables and deposits fall into
this category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that are held within a different business
model other than “hold to collect” or “hold to collect
and sell” are categorised at FVTPL. Further, irrespective of
business model, financial assets whose contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are
accounted for at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR IR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 %
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ZF=A=1—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and retention
payables, accrual and other payables, secured bank loans
and leases liabilities.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially
measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted
for transaction costs unless the Group designated a
financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

All interest-related charges reported in profit or loss are
included in finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in note
2.9.

Trade and retention payables and accruals and
other payables

Trade and retention payables and accruals and other
payables are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B IS R AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F -~ =—# = H=+—HIF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EARESTEEHME @)
POL'C'ES (continued)
2.6 Impairment of financial assets and contract

26 TREERSHNEERE

assets

HKFRS 9's impairment requirements use forward-
looking information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”.
Instruments within the scope included loans and other
debt-type financial assets measured at amortised cost
and trade receivables and contract assets recognised and
measured under HKFRS 15.

The Group considers a broader range of information when
assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, including past
events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable
forecasts that affect the expected collectability of the
future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is
made between:

— financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
or that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”); and

— financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
and whose credit risk is not low (“Stage 2").

“Stage 3" would cover financial assets that have objective
evidence of impairment at the end of the reporting
period.

“12-month ECL" are recognised for the Stage 1 category
while “lifetime ECL" are recognised for the Stage 2
category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life
of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F=H=+—HIFEF
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EARESTEHEHME@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)
2.6 Impairment of financial assets and contract

assets (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL and
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at the
end of each reporting period. These are the expected
shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the
potential for default at any point during the life of the
financial assets. In calculating the ECL, the Group has
assessed credit loss histories and external indicators,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and contract
assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets
relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for
the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the ECL rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for prepayment
and deposits equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increase in the likelihood
of risk of default occurring since initial recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial assets at
the end of the reporting period with the risk of default
occurring on the financial assets at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B IS R AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Impairment of financial assets and contract

2. EREFHHEME@

26 TRMEERSGHNEEREM

assets (continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in regulatory,
business, financial, economic conditions, or
technological environment that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations; and
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Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, e BTl 2 AR - REER

the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the end of each
reporting period. A debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if it has a low risk of default, the
borrower has strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR YRR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE2 = F = =F = =+—HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHEFEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e

Impairment of financial assets and contract
assets (continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost (continued)

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when (i) information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days
past due.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables, contract assets and other financial assets
measured at amortised cost are set out in note 31.4.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in
the contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2.6 and are
reclassified to trade receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B IS R AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

At inception of a contract, the Group considers
whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease
is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an identified asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration’. To apply this definition, the Group
assesses whether the contract meets three key
evaluations which are whether:

° the contract contains an identified asset, which
is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the
time the asset is made available to the Group;

e the Group has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use,
considering its rights within the defined scope
of the contract; and

e the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use.
The Group assess whether it has the right to
direct 'how and for what purpose’ the asset is
used throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease and non-lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F=H=+—HIFEF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Leases (continued)

(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a

lessee (continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as
a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made
up of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an
estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset at the end of the lease, and
any lease payments made in advance of the lease
commencement date (net of any lease incentives
received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the
right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term unless
the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership
at the end of the lease term. The Group also assesses
the right-of-use for impairment when such indicator
exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable payments based on an
index or rate, and amounts expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payment of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B IS R AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHBERBE@)
POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Leases (continued)

(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a

2.9 HE )
(a) HETEZRAXEFELBEAH

lessee (continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as
a lessee (continued)

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will
be reduced for lease payments made and increased
for interest cost on the lease liability. It is remeasured
to reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or
if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the
period on which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities whenever:

e there are changes in lease term or in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option,
in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

e the lease payments changes due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review/expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

For lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
modification.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or
profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already
reduced to zero.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Leases (continued)

(a)

(b)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a
lessee (continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as
a lessee (continued)

The Group has elected to account for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets using the
practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-
of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these leases are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term
of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise
small items of office equipment.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The Group as a lessor

As a lessor, the Group classifies its leases as either
operating or finance leases.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset, and classified as
an operating lease if it does not.

The Group also earns rental income from operating
leases of its plant and machinery. Rental income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease.

2.10 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B IS R AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAEHBEHMEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)
2.10Provisions and contingent liabilities

210 BERIAEE @)

(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not
wholly within the control of the Group, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

2.11Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is recognised at the amount of consideration of shares
issued, after deducting any transaction costs associated
with the issuing of shares (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.

2.12Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the contracts for the
construction services.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group
follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer
2. Identifying the performance obligations
3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance
obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The
transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR IR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ZZ —

n‘l-K

ZF=A=1—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHEFEHEm@m)

POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services
to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.

The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Construction contracts

Revenue from construction contracts are recognised over
time as the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is
measured based on input method, i.e. the costs incurred
up to date compared with the total budgeted costs, which
depict the Group's performance towards satisfying the
performance obligation.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks
to collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs
and margins for scope of works not included in the
original construction contract. Claims are accounted for
as variable consideration and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. The Group uses the expected value
method to estimate the amounts of claims because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration
to which the Group will be entitled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B IS R AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

2.12Revenue recognition (continued) 2.12 KR TR R ()

Construction contracts (continued)

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are
estimated to exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract, a provision is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 37.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of retention
period, are classified as contract assets. The relevant
amount of contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables
when the retention period expires.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of ECL allowance) of the
asset.

Rental income

Accounting policies for rental income are set out in note
2.9.

2.13 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that the grants are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented in
gross under “other income and gains” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR YRR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F -~ =%# = H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAEHBEMEm@m
POL'C'ES (continued)
2.14Impairment of non-financial assets (other

QU4 THMEERE(TBESNE

104

than contract assets)

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
the Company’s interests in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing. They are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level. Corporate assets are allocated to individual cash-
generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

The impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets
in the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B IS R AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)

2.15Employee benefits 215EEEF

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as employees render services during the year. The
Group's obligations under these plans are limited to the
fixed percentage contributions payable. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of independent trustees. The
Group contributes monthly at the lower of (i) HK$1,500;
or (i) 5% of the relevant monthly payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.
The Group's contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. Accordingly
there were no forfeited contributions available for the
Group to reduce its existing level of contributions to the
MPF Scheme.

2.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

BIEF
BAKEMNTREREHRAEREE
TE{/\ °©

AEERIZ R BIERTE S BIRD S
AEEMBEARERSRRE TN
BEEZRERFRBMEATESRIK
wAEE([EEETE]) - H5RE
BEAFEHADLLIEL

HRRFEABERE B R RGN B e
RBAX - AREREBEZFHENER
EERRENEE B LLHRK - 8T
TRBICEERARE . EED R
B YA—BBELEEAZS - KE
B4Z(i)1,50078 7T ¢ K(i)HERE A A
Z5% (ABIEE R ) (FHH RTE S5 8
K MEEMBIEHRFMHK - K
SEIZBRES A ENEL 2 HFARNIEH
REHRBNMEES - Fitt - AEEY
& ] A R BORMEK - URORUR SR TR
TR EIZIRBEFKF -

2.16 fE E R A

EERARE LRSS -

2022/23 FERE o EHIRBERABRAT

105



106

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR YRR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F -~ =%# = H=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHEFEHEm@m)

POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Accounting for income taxes 2.17 Fﬁ SHNETEE

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating
to the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid
at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in
profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither taxable nor accounting
profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability is
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged
or credited to other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B IS R AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAEHBEHMEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)
2.17 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

217 BB ETEE @)

When different tax rates apply to different levels of
taxable income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the average tax rates that are expected to
apply to the taxable income of the periods in which the
temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The determination of the average tax rates requires an
estimation of (i) when the existing temporary differences
will reverse and (ii) the amount of future taxable profit in
those years. The estimate of future taxable profit includes:

— income or loss excluding reversals of temporary
differences; and

—  reversals of existing temporary differences.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS BT IS SRR ML

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F=H=+—HIFEF

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHEFEHEm@m)

POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the chief operating
decision maker for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and for
their review of the performance of those components.

2.19Related parties

For the purposes of the consolidated financial statements,
a party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over of the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

(iiiy the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B IS R AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F -~ =—# = H=+—HIF/Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHHEEHEm@m)
POL'C'ES (continued)
2.19Related parties (continued)

2.19 BE®E 75 ()

(b) (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a party, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the parent
of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs
() Amended HKFRSs that are effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2022

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amended HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s operations and
effective for the Group's consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning on 1 April 2022:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Standards 2018-2020

Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common
(Revised) Control Combination

The adoption of the amended HKFRSs had no material
impact on how the results and financial position of
the Group for the current and prior periods have been
prepared and presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS BT IS SRR ML

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F=H=+—HIFEF

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3. AT RKEBITEBUMERE

HKFRSS (continued)

(ii) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

ZE Bl )

(i) EEMEERERNERYHE

HEER

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and have
not been adopted early by the Group.

REZFHRAVBHRRERENEB
H BT RRETEARBT RS
ERIEE TR EREARER - BRARE
REBIRPERM

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts and related
amendments'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 52

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

B IS e A2 REBREL RABRIERT
F175

B IS R REREEBENT]
ERA e HAEBLERZ
ERFEFHBRIA) BELEIRA?

BB BRE R ERHENEEEE
F165R (BRI A)

BERGTENSIE  RPAESERPAR
({BFIK) RO BERESRE

E5FAIERIERT?

ERETENSE 1R HEZENERY
({BRIA) afE

ERGTENEIRE SHEROEE
BRSREENE
BREF2H
({BRIK)

BRGENESH  LRHMEFTNEER
({BRIA)

ARCERE12% RE-BEIFHELEE
(BFIA) EXEEEHENEL

M

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

3 Effective date not yet determined

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the
first period beginning on or after the effective date of
the pronouncement. Information on new and amended
HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on the Group’s
accounting policies is provided below. Other new and
amended HKFRSs are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

T RCEC=F—HHRZRRAGAD
FREHRAER

2 RIZEWFE—HA—-BRZEFBN
FREHRAER

3 ERHBGEE

EEEY AN AEERR
M B BRFRAN B ERR S
BRERA © ] REERTRAEMF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (continued)
(ii) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 and Amendments to HKAS
1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants”
(72022 Amendments”)

The amendments provide further guidance to clarify how
to classify debt and other liabilities as current or non-
current which are summarised as follows:

e |t clarifies that a liability is non-current if an entity
has a right (instead of unconditional right as stated
before the amendments) to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months from the end of
the reporting period. This right has to be existed
at the end of the reporting period, regardless of
whether the lender tests for compliance at the date
or at a later date;

e Any expectations about events after the reporting
period do not impact the assessment made at the
end of the reporting period as to the classification of
the liability; and

e  “Settlements” are newly defined as a transfer to
the counterparty that results in the extinguishment
of the liability. The transfer could be of cash,
other economic resources (e.g. goods or services),
or entity’s own equity instruments. Thus, if the
counterparty conversion option is classified as
liability under HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Presentation”, the transfer of equity instruments
by exercising the conversion option constitute
settlement of liability for the purpose of current
or non-current classification of liabilities. One
exception to the definition is that if the counterparty
conversion option is classified as equity in accordance
with HKAS 32, the transfer of equity instruments by
exercising the conversion option does not constitute
settlement of liability and would be disregarded
when determining whether the liability is current or
non-current.

3. RAFTREETEBUMBHRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR YRR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F —=F=H=+—HI FE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3. AT RKEBITEBUMERE
HKFRSS (continued) EE\U(:‘E)
(i) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (i) EEMERNKERNEBYR

112

(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 and Amendments to HKAS
1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants”
(2022 Amendments”) (continued)

2022 Amendments issued in 2022 clarified that only
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
which an entity must comply with on or before the
reporting date (even if the covenant is only assessed
after the reporting date) affect the classification of that
liability as current or non-current. Those covenants to be
complied with after the reporting date do not affect the
classification of loan arrangements as current or non-
current at the reporting date.

Besides, the 2022 Amendments required an entity to
provide additional disclosure when a liability arising
from a loan agreement is classified as non-current and
the entity’s right to defer settlement is contingent on
compliance with future covenants within twelve months.
The information provided should enable users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liability could
become repayable within twelve months of the reporting
period, including:

e the carrying amount of the related liabilities;

WEZER @)
EBETERF15 (155TK) 7
BEESHnEHEEHN T ERE
BREESYLEEISET IR EE
B ERIF 1% (15573 & X
FHIFERBEE/([=ZFE==
12577 ) (@)

KRB —_FEMN T —F(EF]
KEE ERHERLTHELEZARE
AR BREANRE B 2 A&
SF2 R (AR mnNmER &S
EHE) A EZ A BN EAREKIE
mE) o ZERMEBPEEBETHNRZY)
T ERREBPEERLHES A
MENKIETRE ©

ot DB FEEIAEK MR E
RHFEENABERELERS &
BREETCESETRNZEEMN2
88 NEFRRZAR - MNAREERE
INFEFE o FTIR MR & RHEE B 53k &
FRETHRZABIERRESR+ =
EARNEBEEENER  HEHEE:

o HMAEMNKREE

e information about the covenants (including the e EHHEEMEM(BEREHD
nature of the covenants and when the entity is MHENEEABAETRERL

required to comply with them); and

e  facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that an
entity may have difficulty complying with covenants.
Such facts and circumstances could also include the
fact that the entity would not have complied with
the covenants based on its circumstances at the end
of the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also deferred the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments to the annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, in which
both amendments are to be applied as a package and
apply retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
The directors of the Group expect that the amendments
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ERAR B RE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3. AT RKEBITEBUMBEHRE
HKFRSS (continued) EE\U(,’E)
(i) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (i) EEMERNKERNEBYR

(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting
Policies”

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
material accounting policy information instead of
significant accounting policies in its financial statements.
The amendments also provide some guidance on how
material policy information are being identified and
provide some examples of when accounting policy
information is likely to be material.

In March 2021, HKICPA issued HKFRS Practice Statement
2 "Making Materiality Judgements” to provide entities
with non-mandatory guidance on how to make materiality
judgements when preparing their general purpose
financial statements in accordance with HKFRS. HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 was subsequently revised to provide
guidance and examples on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
are applied prospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
The directors expect that the amendments have no other
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

2R ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR YRR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F -~ =%# = H=+—HIFFZ

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3. AT RKEBITEBUMERE

114

Amendments to HKAS 8 “Definition of
Accounting Estimates”

The amendments clarify how entities should distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting
estimates by introducing a definition for accounting
estimates, which is now defined as “monetary amounts in
the financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”.

Besides, the amendments also clarify the relationship
between accounting policies and accounting estimates
by specifying that an entity develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting
policy. Accounting estimates typically involve the use
of judgements or assumptions based on latest available
reliable information. A change in accounting estimate that
results from new information or new development is not
correction of an error. Therefore, the effects of a change
in an input or a measurement technique used to develop
an accounting estimate are changes in accounting
estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior
period errors. In addition, two illustrative examples are
added to illustrate how to apply the new definition of
accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and are applied
prospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The directors
expect that the amendments have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRSS (continued) EE\J(%E)
(i) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (i) EEMERNKERNEBYR
(continued) RE 2R (a0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS ISR R L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F -~ =—# = H=+—HIF/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1 Estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimation of impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets within the scope of ECL
under HKFRS 9

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to
ECL (including trade receivables, contract assets and
other financial assets) based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period
as set out in note 2.6. As at 31 March 2023, the net
carrying amounts of trade receivables and contract assets
amounted to HK$4,131,000 (2022: HK$22,257,000) (net
of ECL allowance of HK$102,000 (2022: HK$743,000))
and HK$199,610,000 (2022: HK$171,938,000) (net of
ECL allowance of HK$16,562,000 (2022: HK$9,134,000))
respectively.

When the actual future cash flows are different from
expected, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of trade receivables and other items within the scope of
ECL under HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed.

4. EERETHETRHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR YRR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ZZ —

ZF=A=1—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical accounting judgements

Revenue recognition for construction
contracts

As explained in note 2.12, the Group recognises
construction revenue under construction contracts by
reference to the progress of satisfying the performance
obligation at the end of the reporting period. This is
measured using input method based on the costs incurred
up to the end of the reporting period and budgeted costs
which depict the Group’s performance towards satisfying
the performance obligation. Significant estimates and
judgements are required in determining the accuracy of
the budgets, the progress towards completion of the
services, scope of deliveries and services required, the
extent of the costs incurred and forecasts in relation to
costs to complete. In making the above estimation, the
Group conducts periodic review on the budgets and make
reference to past experience and work of contractors.

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
5.1 Segment information

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, have identified that the Group
has only one reportable operating segment, which the
Group engages in contract work as a subcontractor.
Accordingly, no segment information is presented.

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers
No geographical information is presented as all of
the Group's revenue from external customers was
derived from customers located in Hong Kong during
the year.

(b) Non-current assets
No geographical information is presented as all of

the Group’s non-current assets were located in Hong
Kong as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FRE M ISHRM T
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BtE —F —=F=H=—+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. W=k 2 EHER @

(continued)

5.1 Segment information (continued) 5.1 2 ZBE &)
Information about major customers EHEEEFHER
Revenue from each major customer which accounted for MAEE - REGASEEESHREHK
10% or more of the Group’s revenue for each reporting #=10%F A EMEEEZ PGS
period during the year is set out below: PR
2023 2022
—g=-= —T=-—
HK$'000 HK$’000
TEx FHT
Customer A BPA 184,632 80,175
Customer B EFB 92,316 352,291
The revenue from the above major customers was all FF 2RI R EEETE
derived from the construction work.
5.2 Revenue 5.2 Wiz
The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to REBZ FZXEBHBRERE TR
the consolidated financial statements. RMIEET o
The Group’s revenue recognised during the year is as REENFAERZ WESNT
follows:

2023 2022
—E_=F —_F_

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET

Revenue from contracts with EE AW
customers

Provision of construction services — FeftiESEARTS 338,318 548,839

202223 FEHE o RBIRERERAD 117
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fne B A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. W&z K 2 EER @

(continued)

5.2 Revenue (continued) 5.2 WEs @)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers BBV EREBE1SREEANNE
within the scope of HKFRS 15 is as follows: FPElMEmSIFRAT -

2023 2022
e =

—_— =

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT THET

Type of construction service FRriR fit a2 SEAR A RO I E

provided

Residential F= 149,825 420,645

Non-residential EEE 188,493 128,194
Total peb-c] 338,318 548,839
Type of customer ek Eit]

From private sector IR | 153,429 418,924

From public sector YN 184,889 129,915
Total e 338,318 548,839

Timing of revenue recognition U5 #E 52 A RS

Services transferred over time BE B R 82 % /9 AR 75 338,318 548,839
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TR AT S SRR ET AR
recognised in current reporting period that were included HSHYENEERE L BRRETH
in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting BRARGHER K=

period and recognised from performance obligations
satisfied in previous periods:

2023 2022
—E== i
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Revenue recognised that was ARG BYIEHBED
included in contract liabilities B R -
at the beginning of the reporting
period:
Construction services FEEERRTS 3,022 28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F = =%F = H=+—HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. W=k 2 EHER @

(continued)
5.2 Revenue (continued)

Performance obligations

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due within
15 to 60 days (2022: within 15 to 60 days) from the date
of billing. A certain percentage of payment is retained
by customers until the end of the retention period as the
Group's entitlement to the final payment is conditional
on the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers
over a certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

The contract period varies from within 1 year to
approximately 3 years. The transaction price allocated to
the remaining unsatisfied or partially satisfied performance
obligations as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Amounts expected to be recognised TEEBH LA TS EHERR A

5.2 W)

BHEF
BAEER —BREARERSmE
K B ERFEZEAR®E15560H
N(ZZE-——4F: 152608 R )3 -
FR A 7N B [ HR S 4% 15 SR A I BUR
REFIEA KIFTIEE /) —EX R i A %
REEEMMEREME - 1&&%2)5@1%
—TEANNREERBHE RS
_u:o

BN T —FE2HN=FT%E - N =

T—_E&_E::E_H_+ H

EHTAEBITRIF D ERBTH
E%EE%Q%E%WT:

2023 2022
== =S

HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT TAT

as revenue: WS KB HE

Within one year —FRA 296,341 213,840

More than one year A iE — 134,241 =
430,582 213,840

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are expected
to be recognised as revenue after one year relate
to construction services, of which the performance
obligations are to be satisfied within approximately three
years. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations are expected to
be recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable consideration
which is constrained.

PEEHRTEHET(BAR—FERE
RAEME) 2R FEL EHEREREA
B HBNETERO=-FRNRET -
PREBRTROETZAAEEMR S
BLEBETBR —FRER AR -
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=
eI IS ERERMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 #2 —F = =#F=H=+—HIFFZ
6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. HMWARKE
2023 2022
—E-= =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT

Other income and gains H g A & Wz

Government grants from Employment 2R B{RFEZEFTEIRIBUS B0 (FiT5Ea)

Support Scheme (Note a) 5,911 -

Government grants from Construction ~ REZEZEEFT R KES ([BE

Innovation and Technology Fund RRIBES ) nBTwEEN(Kisb)
("CITF"”) (Note b) 53 282

Gain on disposal of property, plantand &% BB M &N KRS FE

equipment, net 113 -

Interest income FIEUA 12 =

One-off miscellaneous works — RGBT R 223 1,248

Others EHAh 25 8

6,337 1,538

Notes: Pi%E

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group received (@) #HE-_Z-_=ZFZA=1+—HUIEEFE &
funding support amounting to HK$5,911,000 (2022: Nil) from SEEEBBNR LN EREZESE T
the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, RELFETEIEIS A B€ 58 55,911,000% 7T
set up by the Hong Kong Government. The purpose of the (ZE——F : |) - ZEHENIALE
funding is to provide financial support to enterprises to retain REFBLE  URBAEeRESRNE
their employees who would otherwise be made redundant. 8 - REMBIER - AEERHBEEA
Under the terms of the grant, the Group is required not to make TREE - WEAMEENREARIHE
redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the BFHE -
funding on paying wages to the employees.

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group received b) HEZZZ=F=A=+—HIFE &
funding support amounting to HK$53,000 (2022: HK$282,000) E@ BEABRNERIHNEEFEBESE
from CITF, set up by the Hong Kong Government. The purpose of BHEB® R A53,0008 T (ZE=_—F :
the funding is to support the enterprises and practitioners of the 282,0001%75) ZEMB R AT REESE
construction industry to wider adoption of innovative constructive RN EABREEERE EZ MR
methods and new technologies in the construction industry FREIFTE RS 77 0A R BT » DA(REEE
with a view to promoting productivity, uplifting built quality, 7 REEENE  HEIHLZEZERES
improving site safety and enhancing environmental performance. IRIBEM o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z —F —=

7. FINANCE COSTS

Interest charges on bank loans and

e ISR R

=A=1—HIFE
7. BERA

2023
===

2022
e —

=

HK$'000
TAT

HK$"000
TR

RITERIES MBS

overdrafts 637 495
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBEVBZH 30 46
667 541

8. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

BIMAT IR — &8

Current tax — Hong Kong

8. FIEH(ER) BxX

2023
—EB-=F

2022
=

=

HK$'000
FHT

HK$°000
TR

Current year REE - 1,998

Over provision in respect of prior years Bt EBEER (505) (7)
Deferred tax (note 24) EIERTE (Mi7E24) (649) 2,751
Total income tax (credit)/expense BBl (Ke) BIxEEE (1,154) 4,742

For the year ended 31 March 2023, Hong Kong Profits Tax has
not been provided as the Group has incurred losses for taxation
purpose. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of the
Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of qualifying entities
are taxed at 8.25%, and the profits above HK$2,000,000 are
taxed at 16.5%.

HE_T-_=F=A=1+—HItFE " H
RASERTIEENMSEL T BIE -
B EAIRE BN EREE BE-ZT
AT HIEFE  BAEE—
MWERARBRSHRMAFNE EREE
Hh - BEFSRBEIRE NG ER G
FE16.5%:TE - RIBEFNBHRMAS - &
& & E 85 2,000,0005 7054 F1/3%8.25% K
TR RF » 2,000,00058 7T A _E B3 F Bll3%
16.5% HIFH R EAT o
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fne B A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ

8. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued) 8. FIEBi(ER) Bkuwm

Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/expense and RERHEFENMEHR(ER) FXHA
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rate is as follow: B (E8), SRFERAT ¢
2023 APV
—B-=F T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BETS R AT (E518) S5 (153) 28,261
Tax at statutory tax rate at 16.5% BEERE16.5%(Z T4 :

(2022: 16.5%) 16.5%)sTH 2 Hi1A (25) 4,663
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BRGNS 2 MBE (1,007) (72)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HIFEFE S 2 A5 o/ 22 383 323
Tax effect of two-tiered profits tax rates  FIfSFE RN ARl 2 B 75 5/ 22

regime - (165)
Over provision in respect of prior years  iB{EF/EREEEE (505) (7)
Income tax (credit)/expense 8B (ER) BxX (1,154) 4,742
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FE IS ERRMGE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BtE —F —=F=H=—+—HIFFZ
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRFTEBHAI(ER) &R
(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at after (crediting)/ BREFSRLRI (EE), SEF Th 4 (5 A) /F0
charging: BRIATRIBRES

2023 2022
—E_= —E_—

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BsE FET T

Depreciation included in cost of sales: T ASHERAHITE :

— Owned assets —BREBE 14 12,108 12,915
— Right-of-use assets —REEE 15 108 108
Depreciation included in administrative 5 ATTERFISZ U7 E -
expenses:
— Owned assets —BEEE 14 1,553 817
— Right-of-use assets —(EREEE 15 562 666
Lease charges on short-term leases EHHENHEER 9,624 11,803
Employee benefit expense (excluding EEBNAZ(TREE
directors’ remuneration): E=HM)
— Wages, salaries, allowances and —T& & 2K
benefits in kind EYH= 57,196 51,966
— Pension scheme contributions —RINGTEIftR
(note a) (FffzEa) 1,532 1,629
58,728 53,595
Auditor's remuneration 1% B D EM 1,000 950
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, LEDZE - BB REER
plant and equipment, net (Was),/ EEFE (113) 2,042
Note: Ff5E
(@) As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no forfeited contributions @ RZZEZ=F=A=+—8H FAEEITE
under the MPF Scheme which may be used by the Group to RIEREEIE T AMEARSERURIERE
reduce the existing levels of contributions (2022: Nil). HRORFEOHLRER(ZTZZF : &) -

2022/23 FERE o EHIRBERABRAT 123



124

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR YRR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ZZ —

ZF=A=1—HILFE

10. DIVIDEND

11.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$1,001,000 (2022: HK$23,519,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue of
1,000,000,000 (2022: 1,000,000,000).

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2022.

10. IR &
EEVITERREE_ZT_=F= A
=t BHLEFERNETABRE(ZZE=—
F ) o

1. ERER

EREAEZFNSBINERARAES A
& 15 4F A% K 1,001,000 T (ZFE = =
F 1 23,519,000/%8 70 ) K& B 17 L @A N
# 7 521,000,000 000Hx(_$::
1,000,000,000/% ) 5+&

HRASEREBEE S _=F R T
FEZA=+—RHUIFENEDETELS
BERR BUERBEEMUEE_ZT
TEER T —F=ZA=+—HILFE
23N EREREF S EEL AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IR EE
For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —FE_=#=H=1—HI FE
12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERITETHAESEM

EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:

RIEETARA - BB DR AEGIF383(1)ER
RA(BBREENDER)ROIF28 EF
REBITRASHNMESWENT

Other emoluments

H &M
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
Directors’ and benefits related scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e R BN Rikg
EEHE REUERN HETEA HE 23 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT THT TR
2023 ZB-=H
Executive directors: HITES :
Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung REHEE - 819 - - 819
Ms. Kwan Chui Ling BRI+ - 623 - 7 630
Mr. Lin Rida MBELE - 175 - - 175
Independent non-executive BIFHTES:
directors:
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan AT 144 - - - 144
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest HRGRRE 144 - - - 144
Mr. Tang Sher Kin BB 144 - - _ 144
432 1,617 - 7 2,056
2022 T &
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung EEREE = 821 = 13 834
Ms. Kwan Chui Ling MERZT - 624 - 18 642
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Ms. Cheng Shing Yan BRI+ 144 = = = 144
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest ERERAE 144 = - - 144
Mr. Tang Sher Kin BB E A 144 = - - 144
432 1,445 - 31 1,908
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS BT IS SRR ML

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ

12. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Mr. Yip Kwong Cheung is also the chief executive officer of
the Company. His emoluments disclosed above included those
for services rendered by him in the capacity of chief executive
officer.

Mr. Lin Rida was appointed as an executive director on
4 November 2022.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31
March 2023 (2022: Nil).

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year ended 31
March 2023 (2022: Nil).

13.FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year included no directors (2022: included
one director whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above). The aggregate emoluments payable to the
five individuals (2022: remaining four individuals) during the
year are as follows:

12.EERFETHAEHFMHN @

EEREETRRNRRITRER - LXK
B2 R HFMBERIATHRAER S HRHE
RS 2 Fr B o

MBEZELER T -_—_F+—ANBEZ
EERTES -

BHE_Z-_=F=A=+—HItFE K
S B ERE R E B S AR
AZRE B 5 5 I A 18 B 22 B 3k 1 A Bk B 4
B(ZZE==F  E) -

BE-T-=F=A=1—A L5
BB R AR B8 (=
T M@)o

=

13. ABREHMA L 25

FR - TEEFAEEFBRAEE RS M
MABAL(ZT-_—F : BEF—%EE
B2 FHMRRN EX 25 2 0H7) © FRME
NER(ZZE-__F: B TOR)BAANH
MsEzE T

2023 2022
—E-= —F-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT AT
Salaries and other emoluments Fr N B A E 4,556 3,297
Pension scheme contributions BRIRSETEIHR 80 71
4,636 3,368
The emoluments fell within the following band: FNEA T HER -

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000/8 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T, 2 2,000,0007% 7T 1 =
5 4

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

BE_Z_=—F=A=+—HILFE &
& EBLE R T B &S B A ST
SIERBEMAREBEL R IA R EEE
SERBERAE( T —F - &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z —F —=

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e ISR R

=A=1—HIFE

14. Y% - BERRE

Plant and Office Leasehold Motor
machinery  equipment improvements vehicles Total
BERER WORE HENESEE bt @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT TAT FHL TAT
At 1 April 2021: R-E--fMmA-AH:
Cost KA 68,486 43 - - 68,529
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (31,075) 31) - = (31,106)
Net book amount REFE 37,411 12 - - 37,423
For the year ended HE-E__F
31 March 2022 ZR=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount HBREFE 37,411 12 - = 37,423
Additions NE 33,962 6,620 673 - 41,255
Disposals HE (2,042) - - - (2,042)
Depreciation ik (12,915) (667) (150) - (13,732)
Closing net book amount HARRHFE 56,416 5,965 523 = 62,904
At 31 March 2022: AZEZZF=A=+-R:
Cost KA 79,503 6,663 673 - 86,839
Accumulated depreciation 2HHE (23,087) (698) (150) - (23,935)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 56,416 5,965 523 = 62,904
For the year ended Bz-E-=f
31 March 2023 ZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 56,416 5,965 523 - 62,904
Additions NE 10,603 - - 1,140 11,743
Disposals HE (4,937) - - - (4,937)
Depreciation ik (11,978) (1329) (224) (130) (13,661)
Closing net book amount BARREFE 50,104 4,636 299 1,010 56,049
At 31 March 2023: R-ZE_=F=f=1—H:
Cost AR 85,106 6,663 673 1,140 93,582
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (35,002) (2,027) (374) (130) (37,533)
Closing net book amount BREAFE 50,104 4,636 299 1,010 56,049
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fne B A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ

15.RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE 15 FAREERHEARE

LIABILITIES
The Group as a lessee AEBEEREBEA
The Group has lease contracts for office premises, various REEHEAR ARG - KERhERANERE
motor vehicles and machinery used in its operations. Leases HENEBOEESY - BAMELERE
of office properties and various motor vehicles generally have ABEMEERTREE3RAF(ZT_F
lease terms between 3 and 4 years (2022: between 3 and 4 3EAF)AE] - MMHEEHEE H121E
years). Machinery generally has lease terms of 12 months or A%ER - — K5 - REBRNGEALAS
less. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and B AN R S B E -
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EHREELE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets AEERAFEENEAEEENRE
and movements during the year are as follows: BEREBHNT :
Office Motor
premises vehicles Total
NN HE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT
At 1 April 2021 AT —FMA—H 151 297 448
Additions R 1,686 - 1,686
Depreciation e (666) (108) (774)
At 31 March 2022 and i ——
1 April 2022 =A=+—Ak
—T-_FMWA—A 1,171 189 1,360
Depreciation e (562) (108) (670)
At 31 March 2023 R-B-=F
=A=+—H 609 81 690
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z —F —=

=A=+—AIHEE

15.RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE 15 FRAEEEREEEEw@W

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERABEA @)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRETASEHEEBZHRTAN
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities: Z|HR -
2023 2022
—_E=E_= —EFE-—
HK$'000 HK$’000
TEx FHET
Total minimum lease payments: HEBEE LR -
Due within one year —FNEE 616 591
Due in the second to fifth years FEFAFEEH 44 660
660 1,251
Future finance charges on lease HEBBEZARYBEZ T
liabilities (11) (41)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBEZLE 649 1,210

2023
—

=

HK$°000
TR

Present value of minimum lease RERENKRE :

2022
—EF-—

HK$'000
TAT

payments:
Due within one year —FRNEIH 605 561
Due in the second to fifth years FEFEAFIH 44 649
649 1,210
Less: Portion due within one year & : s ARBIAEE TH9—F R
included under current g =GR
liabilities (605) (561)
Portion due after one year included #tAJERENEEE FH—FE
under non-current liabilities FERE D 44 649
During the year ended 31 March 2023, the total cash BE-T-_=-F=-A=1+—HL#F
outflows for the leases are HK$10,215,000 (2022: - fﬂﬁfﬁ%mwﬂ%@gﬁﬁm,ﬂiooo
HK$12,587,000). BIL(ZZ = =4 12,587,000/ 7T) °
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fne B A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ

16. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 16. ZAFEFAEBEZNEREE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2023 2022
—E_= —EFE=-=

HK$'000
TAT

HK$°000
TR

s PN

Key management insurance contract FEEEABRBED 4,625 4,497

R-ZE-_=F=fA=+—HER_ZT_—

ZAZTHHNEEEEABRBALN
EHBReREVEERTINEAS RFE
MEWRE D E AR AT EFABENE
BEE -

The key management insurance contract at 31 March 2023
and 31 March 2022 was mandatorily classified as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss as its contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.

Note: As at 31 March 2023, the key management insurance contract e : RZZE_=F=A=+—H TEEEA

represented life insurance plans with investment elements
relating to one member of key management personnel of the
Group. The total sum insured is US$1,380,000 approximately
HK$10,695,000) with an annual minimum guaranteed return of
2%. The key management insurance contract of HK$4,625,000
(2022: HK$4,497,000) has pledged to secure general bank
facilities granted to the Group as at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 March 2023, if the Group withdrew from the
insurance contract, the accounts value, net of surrender
charges of US$100,000 (approximately HK$776,000) (2022:
US$103,000 (approximately HK$798,000), would be refunded
to the Group. The amount of surrender charges decreased over
time and was no longer required from the 19th year of contract
conclusion onwards.

BRBENIEASRERE - EPEEE
BALEE - ZTXBEREABNRERD °
#A{R%8 41,380,000 7T (#7910,695,0007%
L) FERRREEHRE2% - TBE
I8 A B1RM A #94,625,0008 (T ——
£ : 4,497,000/ 7C) EHEF - AEBFRZ
Eo=—ER—E-—F=A=+—HET
AEBZHTRITRLE ©

R-TB-=F=A=1+—0H ' AREEK
ZERBAEHW - BIEEFEELHBRERER
100,000 7T (#1776,000 T) (T = —
£ : 103,000 7. (#9798,0007%8 7T ) ) 1%
BIRETALE - RIRE A BHEREERE
B RA KR EE19FRETHLT -

17. CONTRACT ASSETS 17. 8HEE

2023 2022
= —E-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Contract assets arising from BEERANEENESLNEE
construction contracts (a) 188,968 152,223
Retention receivables R TIRRES (b) 27,204 28,849
216,172 181,072
Less: ECL allowance B BHEEEEEE (© (16,562) (9,134)
(d) 199,610 171,938
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z —F —=

17. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Contract assets consist of the Group’s rights to consideration
for works completed but unbilled amounts resulting from
construction contracts. The contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables when the rights become unconditional which
was generally within one to three months. The increase in
contract assets in 2023 and 2022 was the result of the increase
in the provision of construction services.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets
as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

—FN

Within one year

e ISR R

=A=1—HIFE

17. EHNEE @)
P &E

AHNEEBEASEREEANELENT
SERE MR E TR ERER - &
NEENBRENK AEGER(—RAE—
E=AR)EBEZEHEWE - BHEER
T —ERN T —EENTARES
BRASHRAR LN -

(a)

BHEERRE AR E k4 & 0 T8 Hi ks
AT :

2023
—m—=

——=

2022
T F
HK$'000
T

HK$000
TR

188,968 152,223

Retention receivables withheld by contract customers arising
from the Group’s construction work are settled within a period
ranging from one year to two years after the completion of the
construction work and acceptance by customers, as stipulated in
the construction contracts.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for retention
receivables as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

ANEFNENERTRIRESEEEA
EENRETE - RRERRES QT
PRRETRET I hESRIE—Sm
PR -

Rk E KRB TRRE S HTEHAKE %
HEERMOT ¢

2023 2022

—B=-= —E__F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FABT

Within one year R—FA 12,772 3,113
More than one year R—F& 14,432 25,736
27,204 28,849
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RS BT IS SRR ML

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE2 = F = =F = =+—HIFFE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) During the year ended 31 March 2023, HK$7,428,000 (2022:
HK$6,976,000) was recognised as ECL allowance on contract
assets. The Group’'s trading terms and credit policy with
customers are disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The movement in the ECL allowance of contract assets is as

17. EHNEE @
MieE : (48)

0 BEZZE-_=F=ZA=+—HLEE "
7,428,000 70 ( Z T = =4 : 6,976,000/
TERAGHNEENTEREEEEERE -
AEFMETFNRFEA R EEBRERE
RERE BTSRRI FE18 ©

BRAEBEREEERREESHNT

follows:
2023
—E==
HK$'000 HK$' OOO
FH&T T
Balance as at beginning of year FNEEH 9,134 2,158
ECL allowance recognised during the year AR < TBHIE BB B EE 7,428 6,976
Balance as at end of year FREH 16,562 9,134

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a probability of default model to measure ECL. The provision
rates for the measurement of the ECL of the contract assets are
based on those of the trade receivables as the contract assets
and the trade receivables are from the same customer bases. The
provision rates of contract assets are based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

(d)  Up to the date of this report, 24% of contract assets have been
subsequently billed and collected.

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

BilE B HERZOBREIETRED
- A EFEREEEE - TENEE
EHEEERNBEEDENE S RBER
HENEHEEER  DHRAWEERE
SRBFBEBHRANETFER - 6NE
ENBERDENE LBBREL - &R
WEMEER AR - At HERREATMES
R BEEREIRN#RSE AR SHEHB
EEH - E AR BRI E SR TRAR
BENAFEE -

d) HERBEBH  24%NWENEEERE
& AR E R Ug @ -

18. EZ EWF1E

2023 2022

—g== — -
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Trade receivables g 5 EWERIE 4,233 23,000
Less: ECL allowance B TBHIE B R IERHE (102) (743)
4,131 22,257

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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e ISR R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —FE_=#=H=1—HI FE

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The directors of the Group consider that the fair values of trade
receivables which are expected to be recovered within one
year are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because these balances have short maturity periods on their
inception.

The Group's trading terms with its customers are on credit.
The Group's credit periods with customers range from 15 to
60 days (2022: 15 to 60 days). The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a policy
to manage its risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
reporting period, based on the progress payment certificate
date and net of ECL allowance, is as follows:

18. EZ BURIE =)

AEEEER R BHER —FRKRDH
BHRUWFAERFEEERE SR EE
ARER  RESZEHEARNEFIERNE
HIHAR &S -

AEBEEFZRGEREEAEER
X - ARERTEFPHEESNT15560
K(ZZE-_F : 15860K) - AEES
KBRS IR HI R B EUEIE - WA BBUR
EIEER  SHERTHRSRERER
B AEBWESEZRBKELHRIFTE
FEERRSEMERRADR - BEZE
WRIBRET B ©

RERR - BHRUKAENGRRER
ERBE) ENVEE N RER B BEL AR
BTN -

2023 2022

—_E_= ==
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET THT
0-30 days 0230k - 22,257
31-60 days 31260k 4,131 -
4,131 22,257

Up to the date of this report, 100% of trade receivables have
been subsequently settled.

The movement in the ECL allowance of trade receivables is as
follows:

(EARE R - 100%8E ZRKFIEDS
A e e

B o RYGFEREE B R EEEINT -

2023 2022
—_=E_= —E-

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Balance as at beginning of year FNEEER 743 78
ECL allowance (reversed)/recognised FR(EE), TERZEHEE

during the year SR B (641) 665

Balance as at end of year FRERR 102 743

2022/23 FERE o EHIRBERABRAT

133



134

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS BT IS SRR ML

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F=H=+—HIFEF

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a probability of default model to measure ECL. The
provision rates are based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

19. PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

18. B 5 EEWFIE @)
FiRE BHE B E O RETETRED
W LErE2EBHEERE - BEXRTIER
FESEEEL  WAREMEERFARE - %
STERMEARNELER EEBERR
MEBBUSMNERBESE - M
N AR RN TR S B M A SE B o

19. ENRERES

2023 2022

—s—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET AT
Prepayments TAfTFRIE 12 =
Deposits & 239 295
251 295
Less: Non-current portion B FERNERER (232) (232)
19 63

Prepayments and deposits mainly represent rental deposits,
utility deposits and other deposits. The ECL are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate. The ECL rate for the Group’s financial assets
included in deposits is minimal.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the loss
allowance was assessed to be minimal.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

BNRAELREETREEERE ARSE
EReREMERE - AREE2EBER
BREEBERBRXAGENEES
1B BEREENEERERELAEUARY
BB AR KGRI © 5T AR HAR
SECREENTBHREEBRIBMRTRE
i o

FilEHRTHESMEERT T EEN R
MmN REHENERZBER N =%
—ZER-TE-_—F=ZA=+—H " &
BiEWHA AN RE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —FE_=#=H=1—HI FE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 HERREEEY

2023 2022
—_E_= ==

HK$'000
TAT

HK$"000
TR

Cash and bank balances e RIRTT4E % 25,361 42,646

RITRSRRITE B RH R AF B =X
B o RITRBRTE RN OB R EEN

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. EERIFHIRIT ©
21. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES 2. EZRAREREFIRRES
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Trade payables B SN FIE (a) 15,688 12,420
Retention payables e TIR2IRE (b) 12,084 10,107
27,772 22,527
Notes: I &E
(@)  An ageing analysis of the trade payables, based on the invoice (@ REMREHR BHENREENEZRH

HEHMERERDITANT

date, at the end of each reporting period, is as follows:

2023 2022
—EBE-=F T

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
0-30 days 0£30Kk 13,430 12,420
31-90 days 31290k 2,193 =
91-180 days 91£ 180K 53 -
181-365 days 181E365K 12 -
15,688 12,420

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BHRNRETGTE  BER—EARE

settled within one month. Ho
(b) Retention payables held by the Group arose from the Group's b)) AEERAEHNENIRBREFSELESAS

construction works and are normally settled to subcontractors EHEETRE  BERIBEARERD
within a period ranging from one year to two years after the BETKEHNIRE - EMFNES B
completion of the contract work by the subcontractors, as HEHE -

stipulated in the subcontracting contracts.

2022/23 FEIRE o EMIEE&EBEJL\;“]‘(T"" .
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR At

R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE2 = F = =F = =+—HIFFE

22. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

22. EStE AR HENSRIE

2023 2022
—E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Accruals fEErE A 5,958 5,296
Contract liabilities arising from BERBEENSHNBE
construction services (@) - 3,022
Provision for reinstatement BIRE(EEE (b) 263 263
6,221 8,581
Less: Non-current portion R FEMENER S (263) (263)
Current portion mEEl s 5,958 8,318
Notes: P5E
(@) The excess of cumulative billings for construction work over the (@) @zﬁllkmin‘l‘ﬁéﬁtiﬁﬁ’\ﬁ & F T RE R
cumulative work revenue recognised in profit or loss is recognised MR ITRKEILD NERAEHAE -

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED

as contract liabilities. The decrease in contract liabilities as at
31 March 2023 was the result of satisfaction of performance
obligation and no receipts from customers near the end of the
year.

Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements
entered into by the Group, the Group is required to return its
leased properties to the conditions as stipulated in the tenancy
agreements at the expiration of the corresponding lease term as
appropriate. The provision for reinstatement costs was estimated
based on certain assumptions and estimates made by the
Group’s management with reference to quoted prices and/or
other available information. The assumptions and estimates are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised as appropriate.

R-B_=F=A=+—HWANAER
DTERNE BITE A R B F RI &
FPRAMNKIE -

REBEAEEFTZNEBEERREESK - K
SEARBRERERE (WER)REE
BHERERNGHREREYE - BREE
RABREBEDIIRENEEEREESERE
R/ SH M A BEMFTES FRER R M
it - BARRRAET S UFEEER
A RIEFT(AEE) -
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23. SECURED BANK LOANS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #2 —F - =F = =+—HIF/E

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group's bank loans were

repayable as follows:

Carrying amount repayable (Note)

AfEERmEE(PR)

23. FEMARITER

RoBE-—==FER-_FT-——F=H=+—
B AREBZRFTERBEZNT :

2023 2022
—g== S

— =

HK$'000

HK$"000
TR TAT

Within one year —F A 511 20,040

In the second year B 533 531

In the third to fifth year E=FRF 1,433 1,651

After the fifth year RF% - 284
Total carrying amount HRARE(E 2,477 22,506
Less: Yo

Amount due within one year —FAENEEE (511) (20,040)
Carrying amount shown under non- FEMBBEERET

current liabilities FrRBREE 1,966 2,466

Note: The amounts are based on the scheduled repayment dates set

out in the loan agreements.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s bank loans were secured by

legal charges over:

(i) unlimited corporate guarantees and a letter of
undertaking given by the Company; and

(i) the key management insurance contract with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$4,625,000.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s bank loans were secured by

legal charges over:

(i) unlimited corporate guarantees and a letter of
undertaking given by the Company; and

(i) the key management insurance contract with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$4,497,000.

As at 31 March 2023, all bank loans are denominated in United
States dollars. As at 31 March 2022, except for a bank loan of
approximately HK$2,987,000 which is denominated in United
States dollars, all other bank loans are denominated in Hong

Kong dollars.

Mz : FHSERERGHIRIEEER
HEASH -

RZZEZ=F=A=+—H8 ' xEEZR
TTERBATEEEREER :

() ARnREHAERDRERRES
=N

(i) BREI(EX) /34,625,000 T2 EEEHE
ABRBREH

N-ZEBE-_—_F=A=+—H0  ~KEB R
TEFHENATATEREER

() ARnREHAERDRERRES
=N

(i) BREIMEX) /34,497,000 T2 T EEHE
ABRBREH

R-ZEBE-_=F=Z=A=+—H  FTAERTT
EXYUETHE R-ZTE-__F=A
=+—H B #%2,987,000/8 TTHIRITER
LAZETTEHMESN © FiA EMIRITTE R AE
JLEHE °

2022/23 FERE o EHIRBERABRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B A SRR GE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ

24. DEFERRED TAX 24, EERIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the BREREBEREENFANEBNT
year are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRBEEE

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related
depreciation

HHMEETEN
HERE
HK$'000
THT
At 1 April 2021 AN—EZ—FWA—H 4,741
Recognised in profit or loss (note 8) PRI ER(HES) 2,965
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZBEZ—F=A=+—HK
—E-_4/F—H 7,706
Credited in profit or loss (note 8) T A Bz (fi7ES) (323)
At 31 March 2023 R-—®-—=#=g=+-A8 7,383
Deferred tax assets EEREEE

ECL of

trade

receivables

and contract
assets Tax losses

5 Rl
AIE& (=) u’J
BEEZ
BHIEEEER RIEEE b ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHTT
At 1 April 2021 R-ZZE_—FMmMA—H 369 - 369
Recognised in profit or loss (note 8) R Bz ER(HI:E8) 214 = 214

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R=ZT-——F=F=+—H

Er=—T-—F@PA[—H 583 - 583
Recognised in profit or loss (note 8) M IEZSHER (HI7E8) 156 170 326
7N
7
At 31 March 2023 N-—E-_=F=H=+—H 739 170 909

”"W‘”"l‘(wt‘ms LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e 2022/23 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ay =
AR
For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —FE_=#=H=1—HI FE
24. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24, EERE (@)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and ?ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%— '\%??@Eﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁ
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of ?széﬁji%ﬂﬁﬁimﬁfﬁ °il'\/{—|i7/%$%
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred BT RS M = HIEERAER DT -
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:
As at As at
31 March 2023
S A
=A=t—H =+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised &R BESIRR R N HERR Y
in the consolidated statement of R IAB EFHE
financial position 6,474 7,123
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. IR
The Company's share capital is as follows: ARBAAT -
Number of Share
shares of issue capital
EBRITROHBE &
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised: EE
As at 31 March 2022 and 2023 R-B--FR
—E_=%=HA=1+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR :
As at 31 March 2022 and 2023 R-B--FR
—Z-=5=H=+-—H 1,000,000,000 10,000

200223 FEHE + RBIRERERAZT 139
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR YRR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ZZ —

26.

27.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e

ZF=A=1—HILFE

RESERVES
The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares issued and the consideration for the share
offer and capitalisation issue.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions

The Group entered into the following non-cash investing and
financing activities which are not reflected in the consolidated
statement of cash flows:

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered
into one lease contract in which addition to right-of-use asset
amounting to HK$ 1,686,000, lease liabilities amounting to
HK$1,423,000 and provision for reinstatement amounting to
HK$263,000 were recognised at the lease commencement
date.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group did not
enter into any non-cash investing or financing activities which
are not reflected in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

26.

27.

Ffh
AR

AEBRAFENBEFENRERELE
HEENREREEPRET -

KR aE
i@ @R BTRONEERRNES
KRENMEBETREZRNERE -

RERERERME

\/

IEFRERS
AT T L& RS
ROFRSRERBEEE :

Reng

HE_T_—_#=-A=+—HLEFE" &
E@EFIY—HHEEAY  BERABEFERE
& E1,686,00087T - HEEE1,423,0000%
TC R 38 RS B 5263,00058 T B A T E R
14 H BT o

BE_T_=_F=A=+—RHIEFE &
SESETVERLARGERERER
TREBREEREREXBE AT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —FE_=#=H=1—HI FE

27.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27.48BRE&RERKT@
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

(b) REEBMELENEERE

activities
Bank Lease
loans liabilities Total
RITER HEERE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THET
As at 1 April 2021 R-ZZE-_—FmWA—H 17,848 525 18,373
Cash flows: HERE :
Capital element of lease rentals ~ EfMHEHEARIH
paid = (738) (738)
Interest element of lease rentals 2SS EIFEEHD
paid - (46) (46)
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITER (55,813) = (55,813)
Proceeds from new bank loans HIRTTER Z 5508 60,471 = 60,471
Non-cash: FRE :
Entering into new leases HIVE =L = 1,423 1,423
Finance charges on lease liabilities F& & EMF 15 H - 46 46
As at 31 March 2022 and i
1 April 2022 ZA=+—HAkKk
—E-__FWA—H 22,506 1,210 23,716
Cash flows: HERE
Capital element of lease rentals ~ ENFLHEAREHD
paid - (561) (561)
Interest element of lease rentals 2N S HIF 25
paid - (30) (30)
Repayment of bank loans BIBRITER (50,765) - (50,765)
Proceeds from new bank loans HIRTTERZ TS RR 30,736 - 30,736
Non-cash: RS :
Finance charges on lease liabilities FA& & EMF 1 H - 30 30
As at 31 March 2023 HN-B-=F
=HA=+—H 2,477 649 3,126

2022/23 EERE

EBHIEZRERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fne B A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F=H=+—HIFEF

28.

29.

KWONG LUEN ENGINEERING HOLDINGS LIMITED e

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

28. EAREIE

2023 2022
—g==

HK$'000

Contracted, but not provided for: EHEMNEES-E
Property, plant and machinery YIZ - B AR

- 296

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a contingent liability
in relation to a fatal accident (the “Accident”) occurred
at a worksite, whereby a subcontractor’s worker allegedly
sustained fatal injury during the course of work. In October
2021, five summonses (the “Summons”) were issued against
Kwong Luen Engineering Limited (“KLEL”) in relation to
the Accident on various offences under the Factories and
Industrial Undertakings Ordinance. Based on the status of
the legal proceedings for the Summons at the time and
independent legal advice obtained, the management of the
Group considered it was premature to conclude on whether
the Group was probable to be liable for offences alleged in
the Summons at the time, and therefore a contingent liability
existed.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, prosecutions were
initiated by the Labour Department. On 22 February 2023,
KLEL was fined HK$120,000 at the Kowloon City Magistrates’
Courts for violation of the Factories and Industrial Undertakings
Ordinance, the Factories and Industrial Undertakings (Lifting
Appliances and Lifting Gear) Regulations and the Factories and
Industrial Undertakings (Safety Management) Regulation and
the case was closed.

The above fine of HK$120,000 was included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

29. AREE

RZB__F=A=+—8 5B —
RETHEENRGER([FR)AESL
RBE ZFHEH—R2DBEENTAR
BETHEBETEXIDBEE - R=2F
%+ R BEMIEARAR(IEBRT
EADIESE g N s P e 3 S SHIPL:Y
ZREFTMEBHHARER((HER]) - 1R
IREREAREFFE R AIOL R AR
BIERERBR AREEEERSERR
AEBERE A EEAHBERMIEHAETEA
BErRAFFHERERFBT - Fits
RABEFE -

RNBE-_T_=F=A=+—HItFE -
BERFIESETREN R -_=F
“AZ+=ZB EBRIEEER(IKRR
T RGN (TR THEE (BB
WMEBERE) RO R(ITRE TELS
(R2EE)RODMENREIEER SR
120,000 7T * B EBERMELSE -

£ 41200008 THE REFABE_Z
T=E=A=1+—BItFENGFAERE
MITERFX -

R-ZB-_=F=A=+—8 A&=EtE
ERERKABE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —F -~ =—# = H=+—HIF/Z

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

31.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

The compensation of key management personnel of the
Group for the year represented the directors’ emoluments
as disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b) Other transactions with related parties

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the
Group did not have any other transactions with related
parties.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated by the board of
directors. The overall objectives in managing financial risks
focus on securing the Group's short to medium term cash
flows by minimising its exposure to financial markets. Long
term financial investments are managed to generate lasting
returns with acceptable risk levels.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s exposure
in respect of financial instruments or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks.

30. B AR5

31.

2022/23 FEIRE o

() TEEEAENHE
REARAEETEETEABNMEE
A M RRM G 12PT IR E N E =

S
& e

(b) EEEEBE S 2 HMR S
REBE—ZE_=FK_FT_—F=H4
=T —BLIEFE - ANE B R
FHETEREMR S

MBRREERAFETE

AEBRNEEEBBREDLETRELDY
REBERSBTAMAEMBERERR - 8
BRRBEMSE ﬁ(@%ﬂ%ﬁk @)~ 15
SRk LREE R

MHERAREERESTSHE - EEMBRE
SHEBERBEREPREBRRERS T
i’ﬁﬂ AR AEENEEFHBETR
- EERMERKRESERARINE
ﬁ7k¥?§$§ﬁﬂ@$& 0

AEEESRTAHEHERERILE R
REH B RBRHH R MBI -

REBMIEEZERERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fne B A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. AR EER AFEHTE @
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities MIMEREERAEESE
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated RE M EARR TS BREEE T2
statement of financial position relate to the following RMEERBENEEH :

categories of financial assets and liabilities:

2023 2022
—E=-= —=E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FBT
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost:  IZE KA ANAEN S REE ¢
— Trade receivables — & 5 WA 4,131 22,257
— Deposits —&& 239 295
— Cash and cash equivalents —REMIREEEBY 25,361 42,646
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABSENSRIEE
— Key management insurance —FETEBABRBEL
contract 4,625 4,497
34,356 69,695
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial liabilities measured at RESHAGTEN SR A E -
amortised cost:
— Trade and retention payables —BIORNRERENIRERES 27,772 22,527
— Accruals and other payables —FEETE A R EMENRIE 1,339 1,311
— Secured bank loans —HERRITER 2,477 22,506
— Lease liabilities —HEBE 649 1,210
32,237 47,554
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —FE_=#=H=1—HI FE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. AR EER AFEHTE @
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
31.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest
rate risk arises primarily from secured bank loans and
lease liabilities. Bank loans and lease liabilities bearing
variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively.

312 XA
FIERBETSHEEHERSHMT
EQTESESHELEEHHER
1 AEENFIERABREERES
BT R R EAE - BEEF
EREFTHESEHBETERRAES
BEHRSAEERBRE S RENE
BB R AT EFIRER -

RE B A IRTTEEERAY A R B R AR
BRAFEK -

The exposure to interest rate risk for the Group’s bank
balances is considered immaterial.

RIBEIF - AR R BEAIE
T

The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings at
the end of the reporting period were as follows:

As at 31 March 2023
R-BE-_=%=H=+—H

As at 31 March 2022
RZE—_—_F=A=+—H

Effective Effective
interest interest
rate HK$'000 rate HK$'000
BERRI= FHET B % T
Variable rate borrowings: J¥ENFIRERK :
— Secured bank loans —EEMRITER 4.17% 2,477 2.1% 12,961
Fixed rate borrowings: (& TE R B :
— Secured bank loans —BEHEITER  NATER - 3.2% 9,545
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 3.1% 649 3.1% 1,210
649 10,755
Total borrowings BBz 3,126 23,716
Fixed rate borrowings & TE A R SR fE 5K
as percentage of total BMEB L
borrowings 20.8% 45.3%
2022/23 FEHE o EHIBEZERBERAT 145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS BT IS SRR ML

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
31.2Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group's profit after income tax for the year and equity to
a possible change in interest rates with effect from the
beginning of the year. This sensitivity analysis is provided
internally to key management personnel.

31. AR EER AFETE@W

31.2 R =R & bz ()
TR PAEEENRFTER AT
Rz U E AR T AR R # B &
RE - AERESTIRABAEEE
&1 A iRt o

2023 2022
—g—=
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
in profit (decrease) in profit (decrease)
or loss in equity or loss in equity
\|aighn, . RERIHD S MBI Emg
(&) Om2) OB ORtA)
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FEx TAT FATT
Interest rate: FlE
Increase by 50 basis NSO EE S,
point 10 10 54 54
Decrease by 50 basis RSO EE S,
point (10) (10) (54) (54)

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered
to be reasonably possible based on observation of
current market conditions and represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rate over the next twelve month period.

The calculations are based on a change in average
market interest rates for each period, and the financial
instruments held at the end of each reporting period that
are sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variables
are held constant. The sensitivity analysis included in the
consolidated financial statements of the year ended 31
March 2022 has been prepared on the same basis.

Rk 2 BREDDEBERTHISHR
REBRAABA LR B -
RERELHKKT—EABHREY
ABALLEY T T -

FRETERE REFH WS N R
8 URNEREMRFEH N R
PHEBRESHNERMIATE  MHAA
HpEHRESTE BE_T_—
FZA=T—HLEFENRAMBR
REBERE DI TIRE —EERH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —FE_=#=H=1—HI FE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. & RAMREER ALEFE @

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
31.3 Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the value of
individual securities. The Group is exposed to market price
risk arising from financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss (note 16) as at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
5% change in the fair values of financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s (loss)/profit before tax and the
Group's equity, based on their carrying amounts at the
end of the reporting period.

M3 MIBERERR

MBERER T AR EREHEEE
M BB AES 2 A FE TREEE
ZREE e R-_BE_=FR T
“A=+—0 A5EEBIEAK
AREEFABENEMEENEEY
S ERERR(FRE6) °

TRIAEMERMAZERERT
EHELT  REKREHRZEE
B RNEBBREA(BER),S2FEA
SERZHRATFESABRNESRE
BENRFEFS %EHNGRE -

2023
—E-=
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
Carrying in loss Carrying in profit

amount  before tax amount before tax
BB A0 B3 AT

R S FE A,

BRMEE (&2) BREE OR2)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET

Financial asset at FVTPL 32 A F{EFT A B
BRIEE 4,625

FEx TR TET

(231) 4,497 225

31.4 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's exposure to credit
risk mainly arises from granting credit to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations and from its investing
activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 March 2023 and 2022 is the carrying
amount as disclosed in note 31.1.

2022/23 FEHE o RWIRERARAT

NASERR

EFERBRESRITANYFIIRER
BERTANGKRETEEEREAR
SEERMBEBRNEAR - AEBEM
HHENEERRIERENERAERE
BRETRAEFRHEERERER
F o

AREFEEARN -—_E-_=EK T
F=ZA=+—BZBEAEVBARILRD
AR R A EERR AN 311
Fri R BRAE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS SRR YRR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F=H=+—HIFEF

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. i BEAMREER AFEEHTE @

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.4 Credit risk (continued) 14 EE = B o)

(i) Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group’s policy is to deal only with credit worthy
counterparties. Credit terms are granted to new
customers after a credit worthiness assessment by
the credit control department. When considered
appropriate, customers may be requested to provide
proof as to their financial position. Where available
at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/
or reports on customers are obtained and used.
Customers who are not considered creditworthy are
required to pay in advance or on delivery of goods.
Payment record of customers is closely monitored. It
is not the Group's policy to request collateral from its
customers.

In addition, as set out in note 2.6, the Group
assesses ECL under HKFRS 9 on trade receivables
and contract assets based on simplified approach,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for impairment of all trade receivables
and contract assets. The expected loss rates are
based on the payment profile for sales in the past
12 months as well as the corresponding historical
credit losses during that period. The historical rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
macroeconomic factors affecting the customer’s
ability to settle the amount outstanding. At the end
of each reporting period, the historical default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written
off (i.e. derecognised) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

(i) ESEURFERENEE

AEENBRRSERERRITN
HFETRH - RTHEPHIE
SR EEENEMEHERE
TERAFGEREL - HRRBA
@ - RIZ PRI sE e B SRR A
BORAER - EREMAT » A
KEERBEFNIINPEEFTR
R/ RBE o WARRERTER
BEPABNFTAIN RN E mbF
5K - BEPHN RSB Z Y&
7 ARENBRTERETFRE
IR o

BESN - aNPRE2. 6FTEL - RIBEE
PR ELAEI. - AEER
BEREETDA(EAFIMEES
FEWRIA K & KB ERVBEE R
FEMBHEBERRE)FEES
RRFBERGHEENRERAEE
B8 - MHEERIERIBE
&8 A $5 & B B K% HIfE
AERNBRBEEEEE - &
EBEBREEHBEARRTER
PHRERINRIBEINE TR
AR MERBEERR - REMRE
HIR - BEENRTUAER - I
SRR SRR BETT T ©

BHREFARGHEERARE
T8 HR A U 00 By 5 (D AR LE T

27
) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —FE_=#=H=1—HI FE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. & RAMREER ALEFE @
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.4 Credit risk (continued) A ER @
(i) Trade receivables and contract assets () EZEUNFBEREHNEE
(continued) (#)
On the above basis, the ECL for trade receivables and REpEE RZZE_=FK=F
contract assets as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 was T —F=A=+—HRESEK
determined as follows: REMEHNEEBREEGEE
EWT :

Trade receivables Contract assets
B A EWFE EHEE
Weighted- Weighted-
average ECL average ECL
ECL rate Gross allowance ECL rate Gross allowance

il 382! il 3971

BARE BHEE  BOER BARE
FRZ 2%  FRBE BRE RE  FRER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T T TEL Thx Thr Thr

As at 31 March 2023 RZB-=£=f=1-A

Collective assessment BETH
—~Current to 1 year pastdue ~ —EVERZ @1 F 24% 4233 102 21% 203,967 4,357
Individual assessment (BRI - - - 100% 12,205 12,205
4,233 102 216,172 16,562

As at 31 March 2022 R-B--E=f=t+-H

Collective assessment BT
- Current to 1 year pastdue ~ —EDEAZ 32% 23,000 43 16% 174,714 2776
Individual assessment BRI = = = 100% 6,358 6,358
23,000 743 181,072 9,134
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fne B A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F=H=+—HIFEF

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. i BEAMREER AFEEHTE @

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.4 Credit risk (continued) 31415 E R ke ®)

(ii) Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
prepayment and deposits and cash and cash
equivalent. In order to minimise the credit risk of
prepayment and deposits. The management would
make periodic collective and individual assessment
on the recoverability of prepayment and deposits
based on historical settlement records and past
experience and current external information and
adjusted to reflect probability-weighted forward-
looking information, including the default rate where
the relevant debtors operate. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
these regards, the credit risk of other receivables is
considered to be low.

The credit risks on cash and cash equivalents
are considered to be insignificant because the
counterparties are banks/financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

(iii) Credit risk concentration

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement
for collateral. The Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as the trade receivables in terms of the
following percentages were due from the Group’s
largest external customer and the Group’s five
largest external customers out of the Group's total
trade receivables:

(i) ZBHEEX B EMEH
gE

REHERATENHEMSRMEE
BREREMNFRERZENAREAS
;A EEY - RHBENFAR
ZeWEERRBRERE  EE
BRREATA/EECHEIBER
B A KRB HMNIBE Bt S RSB LA
[RERBE R INEBEEER (8
HBHEEESAKLEMENED
x) - HRAMKBARZEH R
B 14 5 B 1T HL A R A R &F A o
AREBIVETHEMBERRER - A
FERREURETE AN B B R E
H e BT E - EAhREKFIRR
EERBRFERRE -

Re kR ZEMNEERRBK
BR/RTIEX  RARHTFHRE
B S B AR B R RS AR
=EIRT, BRI -

(iii) IEEEFEE

HRAREEELRARAEER
HRE=ZNETRS  HBFE
Hm - AEEAFETEESD
Rk - RESMERAEERA
SMNERE P R AN B A KRINEE P
ZESRYGREEAEEE SR
WRTREREZ A T B DL -

Due from the Group’s largest RSB HR AN P
external customer

Due from the Group’s five largest ~ JEUANEE B F AN R
external customers

100 =

100 100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B IS R AR Y EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. i EBREER AFETE @)
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.5 Liquidity risk 31.5 7R Eh % L B

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group's objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a consolidated
basis by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long term financial liabilities as well as
forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day
business. Net cash requirements are compared to available
borrowing facilities in order to determine headroom or
any shortfalls. This analysis shows if available borrowing
facilities are expected to be sufficient over the lookout
period.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31
March 2023. When the creditor has a choice of when the
liability is settled, the liability is included on the basis of
the earliest date on when the Group can be required to
pay. Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments,
each instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which
the Group is committed to pay.

MENERRR T AL B REETTH B
NRMBREEHAZ—EMEEFTENS
RAEEHEETNRRERHE - AKE
REEBEZRNFALBITERER
ETERERSREEIET MAZR
PR - ARENBERARFEE
KFERRBEE MG EAEAGHE
& URaEHARERARDESER °

AEEEBEREERISMAGEL
EFMMEERRBRERALMRE -
NG EREERARBESHE -
Re®mFEfEnHREEREL
BAERBENERMTREE - D
RN A A AR B A TR N B R
EEIRE e

=+t REREFITESRABNG
TENFHELIT - MERABEEE
BREAEENKRE  HFEAAKNAE
BEZREENZT AHPAR © [t
ZREANHEE  BEEFHRNA
SEAGHEENRFPRALRK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fne B A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ
31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. I REMEER ALEE @
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
31.5 Liquidity risk (continued)

The contractual maturity analysis below is based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.

31.5 7R By 14 BB ()
ATANFEAIMNERSREED
REVIRIBEmENEL -

Ondemand  Over 1 year Total
or within  but within Over undiscounted Carrying
one year 5 years 5 years cash flow amount

RERS BBE15F AERRE
it REE

15/ {B5% R BiB5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT THT TAT

As at 31 March 2023 W-S-=&
=A=t—-H
Trade and retention payables & 5 & FUE K
BN IRRES 27,7172 - - 21,172 27,772
Accrual and other payables  JE:TER REf
JEIS5RIR 1,339 - - 1,339 1,339
Secured bank loans BEMBTER 605 2,117 - 2,722 2,477
Lease liabilities HEBE 616 44 - 660 649
30,332 2,161 - 32,493 32,237
As at 31 March 2022 R-BE-—&
=A=+-H
Trade and retention payables & ZEFER
BN IRFRES 22,527 = = 22,527 22,527
Accrual and other payables  JEZTEF R EAM
JERFE 1,311 = = 1,311 1,311
Secured bank loans BERBRITER 20,212 2,286 286 22,784 22,506
Lease liabilities HEEE 591 660 - 1,251 1,210
44,641 2,946 286 47,873 47,554

152

The Group considers expected cash flows from financial
assets in assessing and managing liquidity risk, in
particular, its cash resources and other liquid assets that
readily generate cash. The Group's existing cash resources
and other liquid assets significantly exceed the cash
outflow requirements.

AEERFELEERDERRES
ZREMEENEYRESRE  LE
EERESEREFELERSHEMRT
HEE - AKEREARTERIEM
RBEERRBBRSMHLFR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS B35 R B aE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F = =%F = H=+—HIFFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.6Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped
into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels
are defined based on the observability and significance of
inputs to the measurements, as follows:

—  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities.

—  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.

—  Level 3: significant unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement.

The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’'s
financial instrument, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as
follows:

Financial asset at FVTPL (note 16) bie/N

(MizE16)
— As at 31 March 2023 —RMoE—=F=
— As at 31 March 2022 —RN—E-——E=

31. B EREER A ETEm@®
MN6EMIECAFEFE

REREHBRRR TR R FEFEN
TREENABAS/=EIFERE
o ZEBRERFTEMRAEABE
WABREREEERENAT

- FE:HREE;AERGRE
M wECREAR) -

- FE:HEERBEMEEX
RZ AT B RETMERENE LB
ENBAZIRZBAZIR(F —
EBREEARERI)

- FZE:BEFREMNERNEXR
BRI ABUE

CREESABEEBMEREANDF
ERBANERERHAFEFER
BEABRENTERE B AZE -

AEEz M TA(ERAEAEDE
ATHEEEZ @RI AR 2 REE
RAHEWT

Carrying
amount

AREE

Fair Value
AVE
HK$’000
THT

HK$'000
FTAET

FEFFABSNEREE

A=+-8
A=+—8

4,625
4,497

4,625
4,497

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
included in prepayments and deposits, trade and retention
payables, financial liabilities included in accruals and other
payables approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

ERECDHEEZIRKIE Rk
ReEHBY  sTARNRERREDN
TREE  EHERNFENRENTRE
RES ~ FT AR R R EAMENK
HNERMBENAFEEAEREEN
£ TERHARZETANIHAR
% e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —F - =F=H=+—HIFEF

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
31.6Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of lease liabilities and borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities,
and were assessed to be approximate to their carrying
amounts. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
borrowings as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 was assessed
to be insignificant.

The fair value of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss is based on the account value less surrender
charge, quoted by the vendor. The directors believe that
the estimated fair value resulting from the valuation
technique, which is recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related change in
fair value, which is recorded in profit or loss, is reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.

31. IBEBREER A FEITE @

6T AEZAFEE@®

AEBEMBEHPIAMBLEEERE - |
AETERTARATEFAENRER
B - BHREEERAMGRENE
BRRBERE - REWEAH U5
MEALTEMTANBEEZESHVETE
EETEANEEGARE - HEH
M REEZ R E - HEBRE NG
RABZZESBFETMRE® -
IAVEFR BRI S R BA TS ER 4R o

TREENBBZAVEFABRE
AHREARS (BANBRIBEER
SR RIZTEAMBE LR ° fBEr R
FEERBATTERKRR

HEBBERERNAFENKRERSB
HOUER - EERB KB TEEAD
T EE BRI EEHARKE
SREFE  UFHHAEREK®EER
HoAEERZZE-=FR=-_F ==
F=HA=T—HWNERTEBLERE
FEBTERK °

DEREATEFABRBZZEREE
M AFEDERKRFBERRRER
(RHERRE)TE - EFHE - KU
EERMEL 2 EFAHEG AZE
FABIORR) R A EZ B E ) (5
ABS)HRAE  ARREERRZ
R&RAEEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

instruments (continued)

Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable
inputs to the valuation of financial instruments together
with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March

2023 and 2022:

Valuation
technique

fRERI

e ISR R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —FE_=#=H=1—HI FE

B g

Significant
unobservable
input
BARH
BERAE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. AR EER AFEHTE @
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
31.6 Fair value measurements of financial NM6EMIBEZAFESE W@
TEHEVCMIAKER-E-_=4F
E—E-_—F=B=+—H2ZEAT
AT IR 0 A R T B RS D T i

Sensitivity of
fair value to
the input
REEH
WAEZBRE

Financial asset at FVTPL N/A

BAFEF ABRZ

TEM

Account values HK$5,401,000
(2022:

HK$5,295,000)

RPEEA 5,401,000/ 7T
(=4

5,295,000/ 7T)

HK$776,000
(2022:
HK$798,000)

Surrender charge

RIRE R 776,000 7T
(ZEBE=-_—%F:

798,00057T)

2022/23 FEIRE o

EBHIEZRERAT

5% (2022: 5%)
increase/(decrease) in
account values would
result in increase/
(decrease) in fair
value by HK$270,000
(2022: HK$265,000)

REEELH
(FF%)5%
(ZZTE=——% :5%)
BEBMATFELF
("FE%)270,00078 7T
(=B
265,000/ 7T)

5% (2022: 5%)
increase/(decrease)
in surrender charge
would result in
decrease/(increase)
in fair value by
HK$39,000 (2022:
HK$40,000)

ERER LA
("FF%)5%

ZE 4 :5%)
BERAFETR
(_EF1)39,0008 7T
(===
40,0007 7T)
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31. I REMEER ALEE @

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

31.6Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's financial instrument:

Level 1

EIR

HK$'000
TAET

Financial asset at FVTPL 12 F{EsT AIEES

SR EE
—Asat31 March 2023 —R-ZE-_=F
—A=1+—H -
—Asat31 March 2022 —R-_ZT-—F
—A=1+—H =

Level 2

HK$'000
TAET

M6EMIBEZAFEFE@®

TEMAAEELBTAY AFE
BER :

Total
et
HK$'000
FAT

Level 3
FE3R
HK$'000
FAT

B2

The movement in fair value measurement within Level
3 during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 is as
follows:

- 4,625 4,625
= 4,497 4,497
HE_Z_=ZFR_ZFT-_—_F=A#

=t—BILFE - FIRANDFEG
EEHINT -

HK$'000
TAET

At 1 April 2021 RZZEZ—FmMA—H 4,350
Gain recognised in profit or loss RIBETERA W 147
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZE-_—_F=A=+—HK

—E-—FPH—H 4,497
Gain recognised in profit or loss I8 R as 128
At 31 March 2023 NR=—FB=-=%=H=+—H 4,625

During the year, there were no transfer of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

FR HEERERABE1RES
2RM A FEEZMLEER - £3

transfers out of Level 3 for both financial assets and BNEEH (T —F  8F) o
financial liabilities (2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 # 2 —F = =#=H=+—HIFFZF

32. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for the shareholder and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders or return capital to shareholders. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022.

32. EXEHE

AEEEAEENTIZANRREAEE
REAGELE  UARRIEHROR - L4
RFREENEBAREESKA

AEBEEBEEALRE  UTHEBEBLE
BEHTARE - BERXNABRELRAERE - &
& B 7] B A= A AR B R A O % B sk Al i 3R
REBER NEBE-_Z-_=€=A=+—
BR-_E-_—F=A=+—HILFE &K
SEVEHEEEANEDN - BERRRE
{EHEREE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 = F = =F = A =+—HIFFZ

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. & A R B #AR R &
THE COMPANY

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
HN-E=—= MN-E=——
=ZA=+—-HB =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—FEH B AR E —* =
Current assets REEE
Due from a subsidiary W — B B A R F0I8 108,669 110,673
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEED - 106
108,669 110,779
Current liability REBEE
Due to a shareholder JE— R R FTE —* -
Accruals FEsTE R 88 =
88 -
Net current assets REEEFRE 108,581 110,779
Net assets BEE 108,581 110,779
Equity R
Share capital %N 10,000 10,000
Reserves (note) EAEED) 98,581 100,779
Total equity R 108,581 110,779
* Less than HK$500. *  {KR5008 T ©
Yip Kwong Cheung Kwan Chui Ling
EEH BER
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director
FTEFNTESE HITEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 &2 —FE_=#=H=1—HI FE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. &2 BB #AR R & @0
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ffaE © ARFRFEOBMENT
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
BARE 2R st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FHET
Balance at 1 April 2021 R-ZE-_—FWA—RH &% 102,645 (13) 102,632
Loss and total comprehensive 4 RE51E & 2 [ 7 2 4258
expense for the year - (1,853) (1,853)

Balance at 31 March 2022 R-E-_—F=A=1+—HFK

and 1 April 2022 —E-_—_FMA—H 102,645 (1,866) 100,779
Loss and total comprehensive & A58 & 2 1 7 S 4858

expense for the year - (2,198) (2,198)
Balance at 31 March 2023 R-E—=%=A=+—H 102,645 (4,064) 98,581
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
gy 2Tk

For the year ended 31 March
HBE-A=t-HLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

“E-hF -T-FF -“E--& <-T-—F ===

——=

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAL TR

=

— e e

Revenue & 272,916 404,825 481,710 548,839 338,318
Cost of sales HERA (239,692) (352,608) (420,887) (502,672) (326,408)
Gross profit EF 33,224 52,217 60,823 46,167 11,910
Other income and gains H A Rlias 1,105 450 4,569 1,538 6,337
Administrative expenses TBREX (4,021) (4,157) (7,523) (11,409) (11,074)

Fair value (l0ss)/gain on a financial asset %A F{ExT AB2H& B
at fair value through profit or loss BEZATEBR)/

Wezs - - (1,064) 147 128

Expected credit losses on BHEAERBEEER

contract assets - - (2,158) (6,976) (7,428)
(Expected credit losses)reversal of — (5H12) /BEIE 5 fElkz0E

expected credit losses on trade BHEEEE

receivables - - (78) (665) 641
Finance costs BEKR (181) (195) (289) (541) (667)
Listing expenses Bl - (1,935) (14,267) = -
Profit/(loss) before income tax  BAFT8BATIR / (#548) 30,127 46,380 40,013 28,261 (153)
Income tax (expenses)/credit el (%) /£ (4,971) (7.972) (8,879) (4,742) 1,154

Profit and total comprehensive A2 A AFE(L
income for the year FRRAK2ERGEE
attributable to owners

of the Company 25,156 38,408 31,134 23,519 1,001

As at 31 March
R=B=+-H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

“E-NF —Z-ZF T ZT-Z —g-=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THT THL THET Tz

Assets and Liabilities BERAE
Non-current assets e E 26,316 31,795 42,221 63,993 61,596
Current assets MEBEE 65,862 83,246 240,447 241,074 231,118
Non-current liabilities E =N 3,981 4,332 7,551 10,501 8,747
Current liabilities mEAE 24,783 29,887 50,516 51,446 34,846
Total equity ERanm 63,414 80,822 224,601 248,120 249,121

Note: The summary above does not form part of the audited financial  Fffak : 3B EW MER A EZABEIREZH —FBH ©
statements.
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